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  1                 P R O C E E D I N G S

  2                                          (7:36 p.m.)

  3             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Now we will move to

  4   the first public hearing.  Mr. Clerk, has this

  5   public hearing been properly advertised?

  6             MR. CLERK:  Yes, Madam Mayor, it has.

  7             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right.  This is a

  8   public hearing to consider proposed amendments to

  9   the adequate public facilities standard.  Now I

 10   will make a couple of comments here before we get

 11   started and this is -- let me say that we know at

 12   this point if everyone who wants to speak on this

 13   issue, and everyone who wants to speak on the next

 14   public hearing, we will be here until 2 o'clock in

 15   the morning.  There are over 50 people who wish to

 16   speak.  That's just terrific, and that's what the

 17   public hearing is all about.  It's an opportunity

 18   for the public to tell us what they think, what

 19   they want us to know.  Now, I've had an inquiry

 20   from one of our council members suggesting that we

 21   have some questions.  I think I will see how well

 22   that goes.  I would like all of us to recognize
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  1   the fact that we cannot really expect people to

  2   stay here all night and go through one questioning

  3   period after another.  So, I would at the first,

  4   limit our councilmembers to one question and that

  5   question will be asked after the individual has

  6   spoken, not in the middle of their presentation.

  7   If that is acceptable to everyone, I think that is

  8   the way we will proceed.

  9             MR. MOORE:  Madam Mayor, no, that's not

 10   acceptable.  I'm sorry.

 11             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Beg your pardon?

 12             MR. MOORE:  That is not acceptable.  Our

 13   rules say otherwise.  You can't change the rules

 14   in the (inaudible)

 15             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  No, I think you will

 16   find that our rules give me the authority to set

 17   up however I would like to see this proceed, and I

 18   have trust identified that for all these people in

 19   the audience who want to be heard.  You have

 20   plenty of opportunity, Mr. Moore, to express

 21   yourself and to tell people whatever it is you

 22   have on your mind.  This is the public's chance,
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  1   and we should honor that.  Mr. Pierzchala.

  2   (Applause)

  3             MR. PIERZCHALA:  Madam Mayor, thank you,

  4   and I will agree with Mr. Moore on this issue.

  5   This is indeed the opportunity for the people to

  6   come forward.  It is also our opportunity to help

  7   clarify what they're saying to us, and that has

  8   proved very valuable in the past.  I don't think

  9   anybody's going to abuse this, but the rules are

 10   there for a reason, that when people come to us

 11   and they speak, that is our opportunity to

 12   ascertain, you know, clarify a statement, ask

 13   follow-up questions and that's really part of the

 14   hearing process according to our rules.

 15             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  I wonder if I might

 16   consult with the city attorney.  At this point,

 17   what is the appropriate procedure?  I have

 18   expressed what I would like to see done.  I've had

 19   some objection.  The proper procedure, if I

 20   understand it, is that there could be an appeal to

 21   my decisions, and if you wish to do that we will

 22   have to go to a vote.  If it passes that you
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  1   override my directions, we will proceed with what

  2   you think are the right directions.

  3             MS. DANIEL:  In accordance with the

  4   rules of procedure for public hearings, the mayor

  5   does have broad discretion to institute procedures

  6   to make this orderly and fair.  In this instance I

  7   think she is not limiting testimony, but she is

  8   attempting to limit the questioning in the

  9   interest of time.  In accordance with the rules,

 10   she's made a ruling, so if the mayor makes a

 11   ruling -- and I'm reading from the rules, with

 12   which a member of the council disagrees, the

 13   member may appeal the ruling of the mayor.  An

 14   appeal must be made immediately after the ruling

 15   is made.  If the appeal is seconded, and after

 16   debate and discussion the appeal passes by a

 17   majority vote, the ruling of the mayor is

 18   overturned.  If the appeal does not pass, the

 19   ruling of the mayor is sustained.

 20             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right.  Are we

 21   going there?

 22             MR. MOORE:  Yes.
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  1             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Make a motion.

  2             MR. MOORE:  I move that we follow the

  3   rules of procedure that say that a council member

  4   has the right to question people at any time when

  5   they are in a public hearing.

  6             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  I don't believe that's

  7   the exact issue here.

  8             MR. MOORE:  If we could ask the city

  9   attorney to read H2H from the rules of procedure

 10   for public hearings.

 11             MS. DANIEL:  Sure.  Paragraph H states,

 12   questions from the mayor and council -- members of

 13   the mayor and council may ask questions at any

 14   time during the public hearing.  Any time spent

 15   responding to questions from the mayor and council

 16   will not count against the speaker's time limit.

 17             MR. MOORE:  I just assumed that we would

 18   be following that rule since that's something that

 19   we agreed to at the beginning of this term.  So,

 20   yes, I object to your ruling.

 21             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right.  And is

 22   there a second?
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  1             SPEAKER:  Yes, Madam Mayor, I second.

  2             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Okay, any further

  3   discussion about it?  I think I've made my points

  4   clear.  Does anybody else have anything to say?

  5             SPEAKER:  I'm going to defer to the

  6   ruling, and may I recognize the extended time that

  7   we're likely to be here.  I think that we have the

  8   ability to exercise some judicious restraint and

  9   maybe to put our thinking together and our

 10   questions in a thoughtful way.  I'm going to defer

 11   to the mayor on that.

 12             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Anybody else?

 13             SPEAKER:  No.

 14             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right.  Call for

 15   the vote.  All those in favor of the motion please

 16   raise their hand (laughter)  All those opposing

 17   the motion please raise their hand.  The motion

 18   fails three to two.  (Applause)  When you get

 19   here, you do it your way.  Okay?  Shall we proceed

 20   with the public hearing?  Let's see -- I need the

 21   names, and I'm not going to read all of you ahead

 22   of time.  Yes.
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  1             MR. MELLANDER:  I just have a brief

  2   introduction.

  3             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Yes, okay, all right.

  4   If you have a presentation, by all means, please.

  5             MR. MELLANDER:  Thank you Madam Mayor,

  6   members of the council, as you've indicated, this

  7   is a public hearing on proposed amendments to the

  8   adequate public facilities standards.  We have two

  9   sets of proposed revisions.  The first set of

 10   revisions was proposed by council members Moore

 11   and Hall.  That is shown as attachment A in the

 12   council's packet for this evening.  There is a

 13   separate set of revisions proposed by EYA/Avalon

 14   Bay.  These are private development interests who

 15   are looking at projects to move forward in the

 16   city.  Very briefly, as a summary, the proposal by

 17   council members Moore and Hall would revise the

 18   eligibility requirements for waivers and provision

 19   for some exemptions from the APFS.  We established

 20   the city's authority in cases of annexations and

 21   school capacity tests, clarified and revised the

 22   standards for fire and emergency response
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  1   services.  Allow approving authorities to grant a

  2   waiver from the APFS for projects near metro

  3   stations and other technical clarifications.

  4   Thank you.  I'm sorry.  The EYA/Avalon Bay

  5   proposal would make the school test apply only in

  6   the second year, not the first and second years.

  7   Not have the school test redone once a conditional

  8   approval has been given, and the capacity becomes

  9   available.  Clarify how school capacity associated

 10   with a new school may be counted as available.

 11   Give the approving authority the option to waive

 12   the APFS requirements if a project is deemed to be

 13   transit oriented for most of the city's economic

 14   goals and is consistent with the master plan.

 15   That's our summary, and we can proceed with the

 16   hearing from this point.  Thank you.

 17             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you very much,

 18   Mr.  Mellander.  All right, we will begin with the

 19   order in which people signed up.  Number one is

 20   Peter Mork to be followed by Nadia Azumi.

 21             MR. MORK:  Madam Mayor, members of the

 22   council, my name is Peter Mork.  I reside at 717
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  1   Woodburn Road, and let me echo the mayor's call

  2   for people to participate on our boards and

  3   commissions.  I am here this evening to speak on

  4   behalf of the Rockville Board of Appeals regarding

  5   proposed changes to the adequate public facilities

  6   standards.  As you're aware, changes to

  7   Rockville's zoning and land use ordinances have a

  8   potentially profound impact on the Board of

  9   Appeals, as we are called on to consider

 10   variances, special exceptions, and waivers.  Thus

 11   we are keenly interested in the changes proposed

 12   by council members Hall and Moore.  When applicant

 13   requests a variance from the Board of Appeals, we

 14   are expected by ordinance to consider four aspects

 15   of the request, and I paraphrase, will the

 16   variance be contrary to the public interest?  Is

 17   the variance the result of conditions peculiar to

 18   the property?  Will a literal application of the

 19   zoning result in practical difficulty?  And four,

 20   will the variance be consistent with the intent of

 21   the zoning?  When an applicant requests a special

 22   exception from the Board of Appeals, we are



9/30/13 Mayor & Council Meeting Agenda Item No. 10 Page: 14

Anderson Court Reporting -- 703-519-7180 -- www.andersonreporting.net

  1   expected again by ordinance to consider three

  2   aspects of the request -- still paraphrasing --

  3   will the proposed use adversely affect the city's

  4   master plan?  Will the proposed use adversely

  5   affect the neighborhood considering health,

  6   safety, character, noise, traffic et cetera?  And

  7   three, will the proposed use comply with the

  8   intent of the zoning?

  9             We mention these requirements because

 10   they make reasonably clear the evidentiary bases

 11   on which the mayor and council expect the Board of

 12   Appeals to make its decisions.  Thus, whereas our

 13   rulings have no precedential effect, we believe it

 14   is in the best of the city for the board's rulings

 15   to be as consistent as possible over time.

 16             Thus, we find the scaffolding provided

 17   by Rockville zoning ordinance to help guide our

 18   deliberations.  Give that preamble; let us

 19   consider the proposed changes to the APFS.  In

 20   section 2C, exceptions and waiver provisions, we

 21   see that several uses or classes of use that might

 22   have required a hearing before the Board of
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  1   Appeals, would now be exempt from the APFO

  2   requirements.

  3             Section 2C also introduces several uses

  4   or classes of use that will be eligible for a

  5   waiver from the APFO, including houses of worship,

  6   nursing homes, et cetera.  Footnote four clarifies

  7   these requirements for obtaining a waiver; namely,

  8   a super-majority vote of the approving authority.

  9   The footnote refers us to the city zoning

 10   ordinance for more information regarding the

 11   criteria to be used when considering a waiver

 12   request.

 13             Those criteria consist of -- that's

 14   right, as best we can tell, the APFO and the

 15   proposed changes to the APFS are completely silent

 16   regarding the criteria to be used when considering

 17   waiver requests.

 18             Is the current proposal the right

 19   mechanism for introducing greater clarity into the

 20   waiver process?  I don't know, but if it is, we

 21   encourage the mayor and council to take this

 22   opportunity to amend their proposed changes to
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  1   numerate the evidentiary bases applicable to APFO

  2   waivers and if not, we ask the mayor and council

  3   to identify the correct way to make the necessary

  4   changes.  We thank you for your time this evening

  5   and for giving us the opportunity to give back to

  6   this great city.

  7             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  I

  8   neglected to say that if an individual represents

  9   an organization they get five minutes.  If they

 10   are speaking on their own, they get three.  Thank

 11   you very much, Mr. Mork.  Nadia Azumi.

 12             MS. AZUMI:  Good evening.  Marvin,

 13   there's been a long time I haven't seen you.

 14   Happy retirement.  Madam Mayor, members of the

 15   council, my name is Nadia Azumi, and I live at 6

 16   Knockton Court in Rose Hill Falls.  I am a

 17   (inaudible), and I'm also the vice president of

 18   Rose Hill Falls, and as such I am here to testify

 19   in opposition to the proposed waiver to the

 20   adequate public facilities standards.  This waiver

 21   would allow development without regards to the

 22   impact on schools and traffic in Town Center and
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  1   within 2,000 feet of metro stations.  The result

  2   would be detrimental to me and my neighborhood.

  3   This would not benefit the citizens.  All the

  4   benefits will accrue to developers.  I ask you to

  5   reject the proposed waiver to the APFS, and please

  6   listen to the residents that have opposed this

  7   waiver.  It is time we are heard.

  8             For your information, I never got the

  9   flyer.  I have received it from (inaudible)  I had

 10   an e- mail.  Thank you very much, and I'm sorry if

 11   I'm emotional tonight.

 12             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.

 13             MS. AZUMI:  Thank you.

 14             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Tom Curtis, to be

 15   followed by Pat Harris.

 16             MR. CURTIS:  My name is Tom Curtis.  I

 17   live at 107 Wickwood Drive, Rockville.  I'm here

 18   as the treasurer of the Board of Trustees of the

 19   King Farm citizen's assembly.  I'm here

 20   representing the citizen's assembly who's opposed

 21   to the changes in the adequate public facilities

 22   standards as they are currently proposed in the
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  1   market version.  When Rockville enacted its public

  2   facilities ordinance in 2005, the concern of the

  3   mayor and council at that time was the adequacy of

  4   publicly provided facilities and services

  5   available to meet the needs for additional

  6   development within the city.  As its name implies,

  7   the APFO tries to ensure that schools, roads, and

  8   other public facilities such as water and sewer

  9   serving a proposed development, will remain

 10   adequate for the existing community after the

 11   development is built.  If school classrooms will

 12   be too crowded or roads too congested, or there

 13   will be insufficient sewer capacity or water

 14   supply, the APFO denies development until such

 15   time as the facilities and services will

 16   adequately meet the standards of the new

 17   development.

 18             In 2009 the State of Maryland enacted a

 19   series of laws which included a new planning

 20   vision law that modernized the state's eight

 21   existing planning visions, with twelve new visions

 22   that reflect more accurately Maryland's ongoing
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  1   aspiration to develop and implement sound growth

  2   and development policy.  The visions address

  3   quality of life and sustainability, public

  4   participation, growth areas, community design,

  5   infrastructure, transportation, housing, economic

  6   development, environmental protection, resource

  7   conservation, stewardship, and implementation

  8   approaches.  Local jurisdictions are required to

  9   include the visions in their local comprehensive

 10   plan and implement them through zoning ordinances

 11   and regulations.  Using the criteria of the new

 12   visions, each jurisdiction must report to the

 13   Maryland Department of Planning on whether or not

 14   they have an APFO and how it is implemented.

 15             Given the new visions and the

 16   application of the APFO, developers have three

 17   options, but they may not like them.  Number one,

 18   they can simply delay their subdivision

 19   application and wait until adequate capacity comes

 20   into existence, that is school expansion or a new

 21   road or an overpass is about to be built.

 22             Number two, they can reduce the size of
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  1   their project or develop it in phases so that

  2   either it is below the size of the thresholds

  3   which the APFO comes into play, or it will be

  4   supported by adequate public facilities becoming

  5   available in the future.  They can propose a

  6   mitigation plan to create adequate capacity.  The

  7   developer can construct or fund the construction

  8   of additional facilities that will keep the

  9   service demands of the development from degrading

 10   the services of the existing community.

 11             The rationale is simple.  The whole

 12   purpose of the APFO is to protect existing

 13   residents from having new developments cause their

 14   schools to be overcrowded, the roads to be

 15   congested with massive transit, and other services

 16   to become inadequate.  APFO says that where these

 17   conflicts exist between the interest of the

 18   existing community and adequate public services

 19   and the interest of the developer in doing a

 20   project, the existing community wins.

 21             Thus, Rockville must follow the planning

 22   vision outlined by the state.  The question is,
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  1   does it?  So where does this leave us with the

  2   proposal of the council members Hall and Moore?

  3   To quote the testimony of West End Citizen's

  4   Association, the Hall/Moore proposal would allow

  5   waiver or exemption of the school space

  6   requirement for virtually any development, as long

  7   as it is within seven tenths of a mile of a metro

  8   station.  These areas are where almost all of the

  9   large developments are expected to be built in

 10   Rockville, and they would reach well into what are

 11   single family neighborhoods today.  Their plan

 12   would also ignore any impact of newly generated

 13   traffic as a condition of approval of the

 14   development.

 15             The criteria for waiver are vague.

 16   Basically, that the project is somehow good for

 17   the city with the assessment of the merits of the

 18   project left largely to the subjective taste of

 19   the governing body.  Our biggest concern about the

 20   proposed change in the APFS is that it would

 21   exempt a substantial number of development

 22   proposals from any review, either by the Planning
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  1   Commission or board of appeals, not to mention the

  2   review by the citizens that might be affected by

  3   any proposed development.

  4             In addition, the lack of specificity in

  5   identifying conditions under which waivers or

  6   exemptions can be granted troubles us.  We think

  7   more work needs to be done to create more specific

  8   conditions under which these waivers or exemptions

  9   might be granted.  And these conditions need to be

 10   specifically addressed in any proposal.

 11             Most importantly, we believe that the

 12   proposed changes are in conflict with the State of

 13   Maryland's planning vision for sustainable growth

 14   and citizen input.  We see no reason to rush these

 15   changes before the election on November 5th.

 16   Surely the new mayor and council should have an

 17   opportunity to study and review any proposed

 18   changes in the standards.  Any adjustment to the

 19   APFO deserves a thorough review by all the

 20   stakeholders, since it would broadly influence the

 21   direction of development within Rockville.

 22             On a personal note, I lived in Rockville
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  1   since 1951 with residences in Rockcrest and

  2   Rockshire.  One of the defining characteristics of

  3   past Rockville governments is their attention to

  4   the neighborhoods and the residents.  There

  5   appears to be a movement underway by some to make

  6   Rockville look more like Manhattan, than a city of

  7   neighborhoods and central business core.  Smart

  8   growth would indicate that locations close to

  9   metro are ideal for high- density growth, but the

 10   assumptions made about traffic, schools, and other

 11   public facilities, needs to be realistic.  We

 12   aren't going to eliminate cars anytime in my

 13   future, so planning on individuals living in

 14   higher-density buildings not having cars is

 15   unrealistic.

 16             Thus, sustainable growth should include

 17   assumptions that reflect reality.  Take your time

 18   with these changes because they are important to

 19   the future of Rockville.  Thank you.  (Applause)

 20             MR. MOORE:  Madam Mayor, I have a

 21   question.

 22             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Yes, you certainly may
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  1   have a question.

  2             MR. MOORE:  Mr. Curtis, I have one

  3   question for you.  Thank you for coming in.  You

  4   know one of the reasons we called this public

  5   hearing was so we could get constructive

  6   suggestions to solutions to the problems that

  7   we've identified with the standards.  It sounds

  8   like one thing that you've identified is that the

  9   criteria for the waivers are vague, and that's

 10   something we've definitely heard, not least from

 11   the city attorney, and I think that's absolutely

 12   something we're going to be adding if we go

 13   forward.

 14             Your biggest concern is that our

 15   proposal would exempt a substantial number of

 16   development proposals from any review by either

 17   the Planning Commission or Board of Appeals, not

 18   to mention review by the citizens that might be

 19   affected.  Where in our proposal do you see that?

 20   I'm not familiar with that.

 21             MR. CURTIS:  It's the overall tone of

 22   the proposals.  What you're doing is, you're
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  1   allowing the mayor and council to basically

  2   approve or disapprove of any development that

  3   comes before the council.  And not having gone

  4   through either the Planning Commission or the

  5   Board of Appeals or through some public forum, I'm

  6   concerned that what you're going to end up with is

  7   developers rushing to get proposals approved by

  8   the mayor and council without any really adequate

  9   input by the public or by the members of the

 10   Planning Commission or the Board of Appeals.

 11             MR. MOORE:  But that's just not in the

 12   text.

 13             MR. CURTIS:  No, it's not in the text,

 14   but it's the overall sense of what the text says.

 15             MR. MOORE:  Thank you.

 16             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Pat Harris.  Thank you

 17   very much.  Pat Harris to be followed by Drew

 18   Powell.

 19             MS. HARRIS:  Good evening.  Pat Harris

 20   with Lerch, Early, and Brewer here this evening on

 21   behalf of Federal Realty Investment Trust.  We're

 22   pleased to have the opportunity to comment on the
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  1   APFS standards and appreciate the mayor and

  2   council's decision to examine the standards.

  3   We've closely reviewed the APFS revisions

  4   recommended by council members Moore and Hall, and

  5   would like to recommend one modification to the

  6   existing standards.

  7             The Moore/Hall proposal appropriately

  8   proposes to reclassify certain uses which are

  9   currently eligible for a waiver, to a newly

 10   created category, an exemption category.  The

 11   Moore/Hall APFS proposal recognizes that certain

 12   uses create minimal, if any, impact on public

 13   facilities; and therefore, these uses should be

 14   exempt from an APF evaluation, except with respect

 15   to fire and emergency services, and water and

 16   sewer.  Those uses recommended to be exempt

 17   include accessory apartments and personal living

 18   quarters and minor subdivisions involving up to

 19   three residential lots.  The proposed minor

 20   revision that we recommend would exempt small

 21   multi-family residential buildings, which generate

 22   a de minimis number of students from a school APF
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  1   evaluation.  Such buildings would be subject to

  2   APF review in all other respects.  The recommended

  3   revision would effectively treat a small multi-

  4   family building, which in many cases would not

  5   generate more students than a three-lot,

  6   single-family subdivision in an identical manner

  7   to the residential subdivision.  In other words,

  8   the recommendation focuses not on the form of the

  9   structure, but on the number of students that will

 10   be generated.

 11             If the city's real concern is school

 12   capacity, the type of structure generating the

 13   students should be completely irrelevant.  As

 14   proposed, the recommended revision would allow

 15   waiver only if school APF evaluation for

 16   multi-family residential building generating no

 17   more than two students at each of the school

 18   levels.

 19             The proposed amendment would allow a

 20   small residential building which will have no

 21   significant impact on the schools within its

 22   cluster to go forward.  By its very nature, a
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  1   structure which generates a limited number of

  2   students will be a modestly sized building with

  3   limited heights and densities.  This is precisely

  4   the type of development that the city should

  5   support and encourage.

  6             Unfortunately, because of the

  7   differences in the school and city's APFO

  8   ordinances and regulations, development in the

  9   county continues in certain high school clusters,

 10   while that portion of the cluster located within

 11   the city's boundaries may be in moratorium.  Thus,

 12   the only consequence of the city's school APF is

 13   that schools are being populated to the extent

 14   permissible by the county, but only by students

 15   generated and living in the county outside of

 16   Rockville.

 17             As a result, the application, the city's

 18   APF has no affect on ultimate school capacity.  At

 19   the same time, desirable development within the

 20   city is thwarted.  We therefore urge the mayor and

 21   council to support this minor revision.  Thank

 22   you.
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  1             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Drew Powell, to be

  2   followed by John Cox.

  3             MR. POWELL:  Good evening, Mayor

  4   Marcuccio, city council members, city staff,

  5   ladies and gentlemen.  My name is Drew Powell.  I

  6   reside at 1035 Carnation Drive.  The redlined APFO

  7   document before us tonight is edited by council

  8   members Moore and Hall was based on the wrong

  9   document; and therefore, cannot be considered,

 10   acted upon, or voted on by this body.

 11             Based on a detailed analysis, it appears

 12   that Mr.  Moore and Mr. Hall obtained a

 13   preliminary, non-codified version of Rockville's

 14   APFO, and used it as their base document to then

 15   make changes, checking PDF properties of the

 16   codified APFO, the title reads Microsoft Word

 17   APFO, adopted standards 11/01/05, author, B.

 18   Robbins.

 19             In the pedia properties of the

 20   non-codified redlined document, the title reads

 21   "Adequate Public Facilities Controls and

 22   Concurrency," author Brian NaboryI tracked down
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  1   this unusual title, author combination, and found

  2   that the Moore/Hall document was based on a

  3   preliminary version of an APFO document written in

  4   part by Brian Nabory.  Nabory, who in 2003 was

  5   employed by Duncan Associates, the firm that was

  6   contracted by the City of Rockville to write our

  7   city's APFO.  Duncan Associates is in no way

  8   connected with a former mayor of Rockville.

  9             As far as Rockville's codified APFO

 10   document, and the non-codified preliminary version

 11   as modified by Mr.  Moore and Mr. Hall, in

 12   addition to the pedia properties differences there

 13   are many textural dissimilarities, too numerous to

 14   detail in this testimony, making the Moore/Hall

 15   redline base document substantially different from

 16   Rockville's codified APFO.

 17             Lastly, one cannot argue that the

 18   non-codified based document, as modified by Mr.

 19   Moore and Hall and Rockville's authentic codified

 20   APFO are substantially the same document for the

 21   purposes of tonight's discussion and subsequent

 22   council action.  They are not.  This was
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  1   demonstrated by Mr. Moore and Mr. Hall in their

  2   attempts to modify what they thought was the

  3   correct document.  In the Moore/Hall redlined

  4   version, the very first modification is the

  5   merging of two paragraphs in the introduction with

  6   a conjunction.  The conjunction, and, appears to

  7   be a minor alteration, but upon further analysis,

  8   this edit completely changes the meaning of

  9   Rockville's APFO in that it links the

 10   establishment of the procedures and standards with

 11   capacity testing.

 12             The City of Rockville thanks Mr. Moore

 13   and Mr.  Hall for their attempts in voicing their

 14   opinions concerning changes they would like to see

 15   to Rockville's APFO.  However, Mr. Moore and Mr.

 16   Hall need to go back to the drawing board and

 17   start with the correct base document before making

 18   changes, after which, followed by a posting of

 19   that modified document this body can reschedule

 20   another public hearing to discuss the merits of

 21   their efforts.  Thank you.  (Applause)

 22             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Please, we know that
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  1   folks are enthusiastic on both sides, but let's

  2   try to be a little more decorous if we can,

  3   please?  All right, Jon Cox, to be followed by

  4   Chas Hausheer.

  5             MR. COX:  Good evening, Mayor and

  6   council members.  My name is Jonathon Cox.  I'm a

  7   senior vice president of development for Avalon

  8   Bay Communities.  I'm going to be brief tonight

  9   because I believe you know my story.  I've been

 10   before you several times over the past nine years,

 11   since we acquired our property on Twinbrook

 12   Parkway.

 13             I'm before you tonight to ask you to

 14   help make the APFO ordinance more of a tool for

 15   sound growth and development policies in the City

 16   of Rockville.  Instead of what it is today, which

 17   is an ordinance that now creates effectively a

 18   perpetual moratorium on any residential

 19   development.  The primary reason for -- I'm not

 20   asking you to get rid of your APFO ordinance.

 21   It's obviously a part of the city's -- the city

 22   has decided that that is the way they want to go
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  1   with control of their development policies in the

  2   future.  But I think it can be modified, and I

  3   think the proposal before you tonight takes it a

  4   long way in enabling the ordinance to affect

  5   controlled growth as you want, but also enable

  6   growth to happen in the city.  Especially when it

  7   comes to higher-density, multi-family near metro

  8   stations, which by its very nature is smart

  9   growth.  That's all I have.  Thank you.

 10             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  Chas

 11   Hausheer to be followed by Scott Wallace.

 12             MR. HAUSHEER:  Good evening Madam Mayor

 13   and council members.  My name is Chas Hausheer,

 14   and tonight I speak as president of the East

 15   Rockville Civic Association.  I'm here tonight to

 16   voice ERCA's opposition to the revision of the

 17   current APFO as proposed by the councilmen Moore

 18   and Hall on September 12th.  This attempt to grant

 19   these newly delineated waivers seems to be both

 20   hastily drawn and heedlessly rushed through what

 21   should be a much more deliberative process for

 22   something that affects so many citizens.  ERCA
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  1   does not recognize the vitality of the Town Center

  2   and close by areas, including North Stone Street

  3   Avenue are important to our city and there are

  4   currently enough projects underway to enhance the

  5   vitality significantly of both our neighborhood

  6   and the city as a whole.

  7             What is currently at risk are traffic

  8   congestion and our schools.  Maryville Elementary

  9   is already over capacity, and any additional

 10   development would only make it worse.  Maryville

 11   and its high population of disadvantaged students

 12   is barely coping now.  Any added students would

 13   easily overwhelm this wonderful school.

 14             The APFO in its current configuration

 15   was adopted precisely to protect overcrowding just

 16   like this from happening to make sure our

 17   transportation infrastructure was adequate to

 18   handle additional traffic before the development

 19   took place.  The APFO already has enough

 20   flexibility built into it as it is, plus the

 21   oversight of existing process involving the

 22   Planning Commission.  To quote from our neighbors
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  1   in the West End Civic Association in the

  2   resolution that they adopted recently, "The way

  3   we're in the process of bypassing the Planning

  4   Commission would have the potential to cause great

  5   harm to Rockville and the quality of life of its

  6   citizens."

  7             Finally, since the majority of East

  8   Rockville is well within the radius as defined by

  9   the seven tenths of a mile transportation-oriented

 10   area around the metro station, ERCA feels that we

 11   would be the most adversely affected neighborhood

 12   by this waiver.  Please consider this matter more

 13   seriously, and we urge you not to agree to this

 14   proposal as it is currently written.  Thank you

 15   for your time.

 16             MR. MOORE:  Madam Mayor, a question?

 17             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Yes, wait Chas.

 18             MR. HAUSHEER:  Sure.

 19             SPEAKER:  Thank you for talking.  The

 20   2,000 feet radius for the waiver is something that

 21   has caught a lot of people's attention, and that's

 22   something that we were absolutely interested in
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  1   hearing constructive suggestions on tonight.  If

  2   it were to be -- if a modification were to be made

  3   or limited in a way that it was only for

  4   mixed-used zones within 2,000 feet, so totally,

  5   absolutely, forever ruling out the residential

  6   areas, the R-60's, the R-90's and so forth, do you

  7   think that would improve it?

  8             MR. HAUSHEER:  Yes, indeed, sir.  It

  9   would.

 10             MR. MOORE:  Thank you.

 11             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Scott Wallace to be

 12   followed by James Farrelly.

 13             MR. WALLACE:  Good evening, Mayor and

 14   council.  My name is Scott Wallace with the law

 15   firm of Linowes and Blocher.  I'm here tonight on

 16   behalf of EYA.  My client has provided you with a

 17   few suggested clarifications to the APFS that we

 18   think are necessary to allow the application of

 19   the standards to be in line with the original

 20   intent and objectives of the APFO.  These

 21   clarifications are intended to provide staff,

 22   property owners, and city residents, clarity and
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  1   more certainty as to how the standards will be

  2   applied.

  3             We also note that you will be

  4   considering provisions to allow for the waiver of

  5   standards and requirements in certain

  6   circumstances.  We believe that a waiver provision

  7   could provide the city with needed flexibility in

  8   the application of the APFO and the APFS and

  9   suggest that it be drafted to apply to projects

 10   that advance a broader range of the city's

 11   planning and development goals.  We thank you for

 12   your thoughtful consideration in these important

 13   issues, and we look forward to the upcoming

 14   further discussion before the mayor and council.

 15   Thank you.

 16             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  James

 17   Farrelly, to be followed by Anne Goodman.

 18             MR. FARRELLY:  Good evening, Mayor and

 19   council.  My name is Jim Farrelly, and I live at

 20   1109 Claggett Drive in Twinbrook.  Since I have

 21   only three minutes, I will only speak in the

 22   effect of Mr. Moore's and Mr. Hall's -- what I
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  1   call, modest proposal, on Rockville's schools and

  2   school children.  After long and serious thought,

  3   I consider the proposal an abomination.

  4             In section 2C of their exemptions and

  5   waiver provisions, there's listed a number of

  6   classes of uses that they wish to be exempt, not

  7   only eligible for a waiver from the APFO

  8   requirements.  Among these are MCPS, Montgomery

  9   County Public Schools and portable classrooms,

 10   whatever that means.  That's the newly added

 11   section.  But as I read that, it means that all

 12   schools run by Montgomery County are exempt from

 13   the APFO requirements.  Of course since all

 14   schools in Montgomery County, including those in

 15   Rockville, are administered by the county, all

 16   schools will be exempt from the APFO requirements.

 17   The implications of that are not clear.

 18             The proposal goes on to say the

 19   transit-oriented uses in the Town Center

 20   performance district within 2,000 feet of the

 21   entrance of a metro station are specifically

 22   eligible for a waiver from the APFO requirements.
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  1   The proposal is not clear as to what is considered

  2   to be the entrance of a station.  In Twinbrook it

  3   could be the entrance to any of the parking areas,

  4   including that at the intersection of Lewis and

  5   Alpine.  That entrance would place a wide swath of

  6   the Twinbrook community within the 2,000 foot

  7   perimeter.  Also a waiver such as this would allow

  8   development, even if the capacity of the schools

  9   in the Twinbrook area reach four or five hundred

 10   percent or higher.  Such a waiver would be

 11   devastating for a section of the city such as

 12   Twinbrook, and would lead to rampant development

 13   and excessive overcrowding of our schools.  Much

 14   development has already been proposed for the

 15   Twinbrook section of the city because of the

 16   proximity of the metro station.  A bad strike for

 17   our children.

 18             So it seems that the City of Rockville

 19   by endorsing this proposal, will be willing to

 20   take its 30 pieces of development silver, kiss our

 21   children off, and essentially deliver them to the

 22   developers.  I think that is a shame and not
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  1   worthy of our city.  Thank you.  (Applause)

  2             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Anne Goodman, to be

  3   followed by Linda Moulten.

  4             MS. GOODMAN:  Good evening, Mayor and

  5   council.  My name is Anne Goodman.  I also live at

  6   1109 Clagget Drive, Rockville.  I am a member of

  7   the Planning Commission, but I'm here tonight

  8   speaking as a private citizen.

  9             I strongly oppose both major proposed

 10   revisions to the APFS.  First, the proposal that

 11   transit-oriented area uses in the Town Center

 12   performance district or within 2,000 feet of a

 13   metro station are eligible for a waiver from the

 14   APFO requirements, with certain exceptions.  And

 15   second, that waivers be provided for residential

 16   projects that are consistent with the city's

 17   economic goals.  Neither proposal has a link to

 18   school capacity that I can see, which under the

 19   worst case scenario, which is a super majority

 20   approval of multiple development plans, means that

 21   any and all developments requested and approved

 22   for the designated areas could be waived from the
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  1   APFS by a super majority vote with no cap on the

  2   number of additional students and schools.  A

  3   significant increase in school overcrowding could

  4   occur.

  5             In my view a super majority vote is

  6   simply insufficient protection for schools,

  7   particularly in view of the fact that there are no

  8   criteria for decision making regarding the

  9   acceptability of a waiver for a particular

 10   development or what constitutes the city's

 11   economic development goals.

 12             While I realize that many ordinances and

 13   standards in Rockville lack such criteria, that

 14   lack is clearly a deficiency.  There is no reason

 15   we should continue to perpetuate that deficiency,

 16   particularly with regard to the potential for

 17   increased school overcrowding.  Our schools are

 18   already at or over capacity.  In my personal view,

 19   anything over 100 percent, is over capacity.

 20   Increased school overcrowding will compromise the

 21   quality of public education in Rockville, and will

 22   impose an unfair burden on teachers.  Ultimately,
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  1   the public education system may become so

  2   compromised that people considering moving into

  3   the area will turn away, thereby defeating the

  4   entire thrust of the proposed revisions.

  5             Among other issues that need to be

  6   addressed in these proposals, are the relationship

  7   between transit- oriented and residential areas,

  8   waiver eligibility, statements of findings,

  9   definition of metro entrance, and agreement with

 10   other area plans.

 11             Of additional concern to me, are the

 12   apparent need by some for haste in implementation

 13   of these revisions, the plans for future public

 14   input, and the seriousness with which input from

 15   this hearing will be taken.  I feel strongly that

 16   both proposals should be rejected and a new plan

 17   developed.  Thank you for your time.  (Applause)

 18             MR. MOORE:  Madam Mayor, I have a

 19   question.

 20             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Just a second, Mrs.

 21   Goodman.

 22             MR. MOORE:  Again, thank you for coming
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  1   in tonight to help us out on this.  You brought up

  2   the super majorities, and you're not -- I

  3   understand you're not testifying as a member of

  4   the Planning Commission.

  5             MS. GOODMAN:  No.

  6             MR. MOORE:  If these waivers were to

  7   pass, and a proposal were to come before you on

  8   the Planning Commission, would you take into

  9   account school crowding?

 10             MS. GOODMAN:  Of course.

 11             MR. MOORE:  Okay, thanks.

 12             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Linda Moulten, to be

 13   followed by Kevin Zaletsky.

 14             MS. MOULTEN:  Good evening, Madam Mayor,

 15   and council members.  My name is Linda Moulten.  I

 16   live at 112 Pasture Side Way in King Farm.

 17             We have all heard the quote, "Patience

 18   is a virtue."  Right, throughout our whole lives.

 19   When we're frustrated by something that is taking

 20   too long, someone always seems to blurt it out,

 21   "Patience is a virtue."  We live in the age of

 22   microwave ovens and the internet, where we can
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  1   have nearly anything we want instantly.  So while

  2   the world around us is moving faster and faster,

  3   and we see that patience is in very short supply,

  4   we should all recognize that processing the virtue

  5   of patience, possessing the virtue of patience, is

  6   an absolute necessity.

  7             But what is a virtue, and why would we

  8   ever want one?  The dictionary defines virtuous as

  9   honorable, moral, honest, and upright.  That

 10   sounds like a good thing, right?  I've got more

 11   for you.  Who said this next quote?  "Rivers know

 12   this.  There is no hurry.  We shall all get there

 13   someday."  Does anybody know?  Winnie the Pooh.

 14   Patience is bitter.  "Patience is bitter, but its

 15   fruit is sweet."  Anybody know who said that?

 16   Aristotle.  "Patience is power; patience is not

 17   absence of action, but rather timing.  It waits on

 18   the right time to act for the right principles and

 19   in the right way."  Fulton J. Sheen.  "The

 20   strongest of all warriors are these two, time and

 21   patience."  Tolstoy.  Ever heard of the saying,

 22   "Good things come to those who wait?"  Patience is
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  1   waiting, and that is also a very good thing.

  2   Growth in Rockville is unavoidable.  And according

  3   to Winnie the Pooh, we'll all get there someday.

  4   But we need to grow with a balanced and a patient

  5   approach.

  6             The proposed amendments that are the

  7   most offensive, waive the school and the traffic

  8   standards for projects that will have a major

  9   impact in terms of overcrowding roads and schools

 10   that are already at above capacity.  What we need

 11   in Rockville are patient and virtuous elected

 12   officials.  We have Rockville citizens' quality of

 13   life and best interests in mind, don't we?  And we

 14   really need some patient and virtuous developers.

 15   Does anybody know any?  Developers who are

 16   virtuous, play by the rules, like other businesses

 17   are required to.  Developers who are virtuous

 18   don't demand special favors.  I say, no.  No to

 19   the overcrowded schools, no to the traffic

 20   gridlock, no on all of the amendments of the APFO.

 21   Thank you.

 22                  (Applause)
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  1             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  Please,

  2   please let's try to keep that under control.

  3   Kevin Zaletsky.

  4             MR. ZALETSKY:  Good evening, Mayor

  5   Marcuccio and council members.  My name is Kevin

  6   Zaletsky.  I live at 101 North Street in

  7   Rockville.  I know that numerous, significant

  8   changes to APFS are being proposed tonight, but

  9   I'd like to speak briefly about what I believe is

 10   a fundamental strength of our current adequate

 11   public facilities standard.

 12             As it's now written, the adequate public

 13   facilities standard is a blind standard.  And by

 14   that I mean it doesn't make distinctions for

 15   politics or for cronyism or for the arbitrary

 16   judgment of one individual or one governing body.

 17   It cannot, and it should not, because APFS is

 18   intended to ensure that the proposed development

 19   does not outpace supporting facilities.  It deals

 20   with absolutes.  It deals with the absolutes of

 21   the physical capacities, and the underlying

 22   infrastructures, not with subjective
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  1   determinations of aesthetics, or perceived utility

  2   or social justice that are more appropriate

  3   probably for zoning guidelines or master plans.

  4             The APFS only knows and cares that a

  5   child living in the Town Center performance area

  6   takes up just as much and no more space than a

  7   child living anywhere else in Rockville in a

  8   classroom, and that is a good thing.

  9             Allowing waivers for development in

 10   certain parts of the city as some of these

 11   amendments propose, is essentially making the APFO

 12   and APFS optional in those areas.  Of course the

 13   areas being discussed, the Town Center performance

 14   area, areas surrounding the metros, not only the

 15   places where the majority of new development is

 16   likely to occur, but also those zoned for the

 17   highest building heights and densities.  They're

 18   also the areas where traffic and school

 19   overcrowding are our greatest challenges.  In

 20   other words, the only area of the city where the

 21   APFS really matters.

 22             No one would propose making the fire or
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  1   the sewer or the water provisions of the APFS

  2   optional in these areas or in any areas because

  3   the failure to meet those standards has hard and

  4   absolute consequences, buildings burn down, pipes

  5   stop functioning.  But for some reason our

  6   children and our roads are deemed to be flexible.

  7   Everyone thinks no one will notice one more child

  8   or the next or the next, stuffed into a trailer

  9   classroom at Bell Elementary, or one more car, or

 10   the next or the next drowning in an already

 11   congested sea of traffic on Rockville Pike.

 12   Commute times might get a little bit longer.

 13   Lunchtimes might push a little bit earlier, but it

 14   happens gradually over time and the world moves

 15   on.

 16             But once the absolute nature of our APFS

 17   is removed, you know, once our standard becomes

 18   optional, the temptations and the pressures are

 19   far too great to give into this special interest

 20   or that exception or to let things go just this

 21   one last time.  It may not happen on this council.

 22   It may not happen on the next council, but
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  1   eventually, Rockville will become just another

  2   Roslyn or Crystal City or White Flynn.  The

  3   officials who deal with these issues most closely,

  4   and the citizens that are most directly affected

  5   by these changes, see this clearly I think.

  6   That's why the Planning Commission voted

  7   unanimously to join with the citizen's association

  8   from Twinbrook, East Rockville, King Farm, and the

  9   west end to oppose waivers to the APFS standards.

 10   I urge you not to make our city's minimum

 11   infrastructure standards optional.  If we're

 12   unhappy with the types of development that we're

 13   receiving in key areas of our city, then let's

 14   work on a mechanism to direct that, that doesn't

 15   undercut the basic quality of life.  Otherwise, we

 16   may end up with the worst of both worlds.  Thank

 17   you for your consideration.  (Applause)

 18             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  He has a question for

 19   you.

 20             MR. HALL:  What other mechanism is

 21   there?

 22             MR. ZALETSKY:  I'll be honest --
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  1             MR. HALL:  Because, you know, when -- to

  2   continue my question, when the building on North

  3   Washington was first proposed, the two-story

  4   office building, and then a senior building behind

  5   it, we actually got quite a bit of objection from

  6   people on the west end about the type of

  7   development.  That that's the type of development

  8   in that area that is allowed, pretty much because

  9   of the APFO and APFS.  And what I'm wondering is,

 10   what other mechanism is there because if what

 11   people had in mind, which was, you know,

 12   townhouses, I've seen that in some people's plans,

 13   apartments buildings, those would add to the

 14   school.

 15             MR. ZALETSKY:  Sure, and I'll be honest.

 16   I'm not a legislator.  I'm not a land-use

 17   attorney.  I don't know what the mechanisms are

 18   out there, but maybe that's the reason for a

 19   hearing like this, so we can go and explore.  What

 20   I'm saying is, the APFS is not the proper

 21   mechanism.  The APFS is a mechanism that's

 22   designed to say, let's make sure we're not
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  1   overstressing, you know, fundamental absolute

  2   capacities, and we're trying to use it as a

  3   document to direct the type of development that

  4   we're putting in these areas.  Again, I'm not a

  5   land-use attorney, but to me it seems like the

  6   wrong mechanism to be dealing with this

  7   (inaudible)

  8             MR. MOORE:  Madam Mayor.  Is it fair to

  9   say that, you know, we have a master plan, we have

 10   zoning, and that kind of thing -- is that a tool

 11   that we should be using as well to determine what

 12   goes in those areas?

 13             MR. ZALETSKY:  I think so, yes.

 14             SPEAKER:  Okay, great.  Thank you.

 15             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right, we have --

 16   thank you very much -- Melanie Zaletsky, to be

 17   followed by Jack Gelin.

 18             MS. ZALETSKY:  Good evening, Mayor

 19   Marcuccio and council members.  I am Melanie

 20   Zaletsky, and I live at 101 North Street.  I'm

 21   here tonight to voice my concerns with the APFS

 22   changes that council members Moore and Hall are
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  1   proposing, which would allow for waivers to be

  2   given to developers, so they would not be required

  3   to meet school and traffic standards.  I am

  4   opposed to these changes.

  5             It is shocking to see the most recent

  6   school capacity numbers and projections within the

  7   Richard Montgomery cluster, and to know that yet,

  8   our city leaders are still considering the

  9   possibility of waivers which would, without

 10   question, exacerbate the current, stressed

 11   conditions.

 12             Already our schools are busting at the

 13   seams.  Kids are being forced to begin their lunch

 14   hour as early as 10:45 a.m., due to school

 15   overcrowding.  Resources are scarce.  Space is

 16   tight, and our children are being relegated to

 17   trailers, rather than a normal, productive

 18   classroom environment.

 19             Last year, Bell Elementary School was at

 20   122 percent of capacity.  There are trailers all

 21   over what used to be a play-yard.  And projections

 22   for future years only rise above that already
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  1   outrageous figure.  Ritchie Park is even worse at

  2   135 percent of capacity.  Richard Montgomery High

  3   School, built just a few years ago, is projected

  4   to be overcrowded in just two years.  Yes, the

  5   problem is worsening already, even without the

  6   actions now being comtemplated by this mayor and

  7   council, which will burden our schools and

  8   negatively affect our children even further.

  9             In addition to granting a waiver to

 10   developers on the school's test, council member

 11   Moore and Hall's proposal would also allow for

 12   waivers to bypass the traffic standards.  Traffic

 13   on a Rockville Pike is already a painful reality

 14   for those of us living here.  Our intersections

 15   are already failing.  Further unbridled

 16   development in and around the metro areas, means

 17   more people.  More people means more cars, and

 18   more cars means more traffic.  It's as simple as

 19   that.

 20             I understand that the pressures from

 21   developers to build, build, build, is enormous.

 22   They have lobbyists, and they have lawyers, and
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  1   they have money on their side.  They know they can

  2   make money by building in Rockville.  But I urge

  3   you to consider those of us who are not it in for

  4   profit.  Those of us who are in it for the quality

  5   of life offered by Rockville.  We want balance.

  6   Allowing for waivers which can bypass the

  7   standards controlling sensible development is not

  8   balanced.  It's not fair, and it's not sensible.

  9   Don't make us become part of that build, build,

 10   build machine without having the infrastructure

 11   required to support it.  We already have nearly

 12   800 apartment units approved to be built very

 13   close to here by Duball, in front of the movie

 14   theater.  Most people don't realize those two

 15   buildings will be 15 stories and 18 stories high.

 16   Avalon Bay is seeking to build 240 units by the

 17   Twinbrook station.  Silverwood, by the Shady Grove

 18   station is approved for 419 housing units.

 19   Allowing developers to obtain waivers within a

 20   2,000 foot radius of metro stations will open the

 21   floodgates for them to build even more in these

 22   areas which are already zoned for the greatest
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  1   density and the greatest heights, and will force

  2   us to sacrifice the quality of education and

  3   quality of life offered to Rockville residents.

  4             The West End Citizen's Association voted

  5   unanimously against the idea of these waivers.

  6   The Twinbrook, East Rockville and King Farm

  7   Citizens' Association also voted against the

  8   proposed APF waivers.  Please don't jam our

  9   schools any further and don't pile more cars on

 10   top of us by allowing developers to take advantage

 11   of us in granting waivers.  Your job is to ensure

 12   responsible, sensible, balanced growth, and

 13   permitting those proposed waivers would not be in

 14   keeping with those principles.  Thank you.

 15   (Applause)

 16             MR. MOORE:  I have a quick question.

 17             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Ms. Zalesky, he has a

 18   question for you.

 19             MR. MOORE:  Quick question -- you know,

 20   the APFO was passed in 2005 and since then our

 21   schools have gotten significantly more crowded,

 22   and some estimates are that 85 percent of all new
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  1   students come from existing houses, like mine,

  2   rather than new development.  Given that the

  3   schools have gotten so much more crowded with this

  4   tool in place, is it fair to say that the APFO

  5   hasn't worked?

  6             MS. ZALETSKY:  Well, I think -- remember

  7   that the first time the APFO was tested was just a

  8   few years back.  That was really the first

  9   opportunity with the development proposed for

 10   Beall's Grant II.  That was the first time it was

 11   put to the test.  I think the APFO is an important

 12   tool to keep in place.  What I think -- you were

 13   asking earlier about solutions, council member,

 14   Moore -- I think part of what this mayor and

 15   council should be looking to do, is to have the

 16   developers apply a little pressure in some other

 17   areas, rather than again relying on the community

 18   to bend to the developers' desire, to apply a

 19   little bit more pressure to MCPS.  Because if it's

 20   the school capacity and the traffic that's holding

 21   up the development in the city, you know, don't

 22   ask the community and the neighborhoods to break.
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  1   Ask MCPS to come forward with some other

  2   solutions.

  3             MR. MOORE:  Great, thank you.

  4   (Applause)

  5             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right.  I have

  6   Jack Gelin to be followed by Tom Gibney.  Is that

  7   for effect?

  8             MR. GELIN:  No, I can see you -- I just

  9   had surgery, and I can see you fine, but I can't

 10   see this at all.  (Laughter)  They say things will

 11   get better, but not through the APFS.  Good

 12   evening, Madam Mayor, and members of the city

 13   council.  I'm Jack Gelin.  I reside at 105 South

 14   Van Buren Street in Rockville, and I appear here

 15   in opposition to the waiver provision of the APFS

 16   and the APFO.

 17             The APFO was enacted to combat pressures

 18   over development that threatened the quality of

 19   life of Rockville citizens.  At stake is the

 20   city's already crowded schools and congested

 21   roads.  The claim by proponents of the waiver,

 22   that the development of the Town Center area were
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  1   within 2,000 feet of a metro station would not

  2   further crowd our schools or road is fiction.

  3   Adjacent to our existing neighborhoods are exactly

  4   the places where developers will take advantage of

  5   waivers.  Additional residences, the Town Center

  6   less composed, (inaudible) will surely add to the

  7   overcrowded schools.

  8             Development near metro stations will not

  9   ease overcrowding of schools, nor will the roads

 10   become less congested.  Unlike New York, Paris,

 11   London, the Washington metropolitan area system is

 12   not extensive enough to enable residents to travel

 13   conveniently to many parts of the Washington

 14   metropolitan area.

 15             Unlike those cities, where shopping is

 16   conveniently located within walking distance of

 17   homes and every neighborhood -- and that's New

 18   York where I grew up, residents of Washington

 19   metropolitan area, including Rockville, must use

 20   their cars to carry their purchases.  It just

 21   happens.  It's a necessity.  The residents of the

 22   west end where I live realized this when on
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  1   September 19th the executive board of WECA, which

  2   represents over 1,500 families, voted unanimously

  3   to oppose your granting of their proposed waiver.

  4   And this has been followed in other neighborhoods

  5   within the city.  And I submit that it represents

  6   the overwhelming number of Rockville's residents.

  7             Waivers surely serve the interests of

  8   the developers, not the residents who settled in

  9   Rockville hoping to establish a community, based

 10   on life in schools that are not overcrowded, roads

 11   not gridlocked.  Unfortunately, school

 12   construction in Rockville is controlled solely by

 13   the county that's dominated by representatives of

 14   the county, who do not consider Rockville's

 15   residents to be important to them.  And for that

 16   reason they've (inaudible) large courthouses

 17   recently which exacerbate our problems of parking

 18   and traffic.

 19             Further, the principle thoroughfare in

 20   Rockville is the Rockville Pike, a state highway

 21   that serves mainly commuters for whom Rockville is

 22   neither the point of origin nor destination.
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  1   Needless to say, the State Highway Department's

  2   interest and values do not coincide with those of

  3   Rockville's residents.

  4             In sum, I urge you to reject any attempt

  5   to undermine the community values that APFO and

  6   APFS protect.  Please do not enact the proposed

  7   waivers.  The voters of Rockville are watching.

  8             MR. MOORE:  Madam Mayor.

  9             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Just a moment.  Don't

 10   go away.  I have two questions.  He made noise

 11   first so let him go.

 12             MR. MOORE:  Thank you for coming Mr.

 13   Gelin.  On the waivers, one of the things that is

 14   in the proposal that councilmember Hall and I have

 15   put forward, hoping for revisions and

 16   improvements, one is to not just waive but exempt

 17   public school construction, MCPS schools and

 18   portable classrooms.  Is that a waiver you oppose

 19   as well?

 20             MR. GELIN:  I don't quite understand it.

 21             MR. MOORE:  We have moved a lot of

 22   things from one category to another.  One of the
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  1   things that we're not just waiving, but exempting,

  2   is MCPS schools and portable classrooms.  Do you

  3   oppose that?

  4             MR. GELIN:  The way I understand what

  5   you're saying is that portable classrooms don't

  6   get considered.

  7             MR. MOORE:  Right.

  8             MR. GELIN:  I think that degrades the

  9   quality of the schools, yes.

 10             MR. MOORE:  No, no, no, it doesn't get

 11   considered in the APFS.  Like if you want to put a

 12   portable classroom in, they don't have to pass the

 13   standard.  Or if they want to build a new school

 14   in the city, they don't have to pass the APFS.

 15             MR. GELIN:  Oh, if they build a school,

 16   that would be fine.  But we don't control the

 17   building of schools.  Now you could possibly get

 18   money from developers, either to contribute

 19   towards schools or something like that, which I

 20   don't think has been done yet here in this

 21   community.  It's been done elsewhere, and

 22   infrastructure, I know, in other areas such as
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  1   fire stations doesn't require, parks have been

  2   required, and roads have been required.  I think

  3   that's a creative solution which could be

  4   considered.  But that hasn't -- that's not

  5   involved here yet.

  6             MR. MOORE:  I'm going to ask the

  7   question again.  The waivers that we're putting

  8   forward include schools and portable classrooms.

  9   Do you oppose that waiver as well?

 10             MR. GELIN:  Again, I don't want to be

 11   dense on this thing.

 12             MR. HALL:  If I may, sir.  The intent

 13   was to remove all possible barriers to the

 14   construction of schools, and also to avoid the

 15   kind of threat that we had --

 16             MR. GELIN:  No, I would not oppose

 17   barriers to the construction of schools.  I'm

 18   sorry.

 19             MR. MOORE:  Okay, great.

 20             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Mr. Pierzchala, don't

 21   go away.  He has another question.

 22             MR. PIERZCHALA:  Yes, thank you, Mr.
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  1   Gelin.  In your statement it just seemed to me

  2   that you put -- without saying so in so many

  3   words, you kind of hit the nail on the head and

  4   that is a lot of -- well, let me just say that

  5   Montgomery County has more population than six

  6   states.  I looked that up the other day.  And

  7   Rockville was right in the middle of it.  And if

  8   you look at an aerial photo of the city without

  9   boundaries, you can't tell where Rockville ends

 10   and the county starts, okay?

 11             And so, you know, part of the grappling

 12   with this issue that I've done, is distinguishing

 13   between growth, which is really births exceeding

 14   deaths and people moving in versus people moving

 15   out versus development.  But isn't the problem

 16   that Rockville has, is that growth -- even if we

 17   were to somehow be able to stop growth in

 18   Rockville, which I doubt, we can't stop

 19   development.  But isn't growth all around us part

 20   of the problem?  I mean, isn't that --

 21             MR. GELIN:  You raise a very interesting

 22   point.  But I think what you're leading to is
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  1   that, we might as well abolish the City of

  2   Rockville, which is different, and become part --

  3   have Montgomery County run us.  (Laughter)

  4             MR. PIERZCHALA:  That's not what I'm

  5   getting at.  What I'm getting at is -- well, I

  6   think --

  7             MR. GELIN:  I heard people want to

  8   revoke the charter.  I haven't agreed with them,

  9   but you're making an argument for it.

 10             MR. PIERZCHALA:  But what I'm saying is,

 11   okay, so you get people -- we can stop

 12   development.  That's within our power, okay?  You

 13   get people then building on the edges of

 14   Rockville.  Don't we still have the same problems?

 15   Because the school boundaries don't respect our

 16   city borders, and people aren't housed next to

 17   metro.  They have to drive to metro.

 18             MR. GELIN:  Then you're saying we can't

 19   control anything because the county --

 20             MR. PIERZCHALA:  I'm not saying that at

 21   all.  What I'm saying is that you have to

 22   distinguish between growth and development.
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  1   They're not exactly the same thing.  That's what

  2   I'm saying.

  3             MR. GELIN:  Well, growth will happen.

  4   And we're playing with words if we say development

  5   is not growth.  I just think that's metaphysical.

  6   We know what --

  7             MR. PIERZCHALA:  If there was no growth,

  8   there would be no development.

  9             MR. GELIN:  -- develop is.  When you

 10   have more population coming in, no matter what you

 11   call it, and the school overcrowding or roads

 12   crowding, we know what that is too.  We don't have

 13   to --

 14             MR. PIERZCHALA:  No, I understand, but,

 15   you know, what I'm saying is that the APFO, APFS

 16   -- one of the reasons I have philosophical issues

 17   with them is because they don't work, and that

 18   other things need to be tried.  That could be much

 19   more effective.  That's what I'm saying.

 20             MR. GELIN:  If, you know, Mr. Moore has

 21   said if it doesn't work, let's abandon it, or has

 22   suggested it.  You know, I just think -- improve
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  1   it don't abandon it.

  2             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  I think you two

  3   gentlemen should have this conversation later on.

  4   This is not appropriate.

  5                  (Applause)

  6             MR. PIERZCHALA:  What we're seeing is a

  7   lot of --

  8             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  I'm sorry, sir.

  9             MR. PIERZCHALA:  What we're seeing is a

 10   lot of cliché.  We're seeing a lot of cliché.

 11             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Please.

 12             MR. PIERZCHALA:  I think we have to get

 13   beyond that.

 14             MR. GELIN:  Thank you.

 15             MR. PIERZCHALA:  Thank you.

 16             MR. GELIN:  I don't want to (inaudible)

 17   our mayor.

 18             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Tom Gibney, to be

 19   followed by Robin Corridon.

 20             MR. GIBNEY:  I think you're trying to

 21   avoid me.  My names's Tom Gibney.  I live at 311

 22   Pure Spring Crescent in Rockville, Maryland, and I
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  1   was a member of the APFO review committee.  When I

  2   heard about this hearing, I was both personally

  3   insulted and appalled.

  4             In the documentation that accompanies

  5   this meeting, our recommendation's not included.

  6   Our papers are not included.  I spent eight months

  7   with seven other volunteers -- I'm sorry -- it was

  8   seven volunteers from (inaudible), along with two

  9   other representatives that weren't members.  We

 10   spent eight months, three hours a week, in a room

 11   here going over that APFO and APFS, and you

 12   disregarded our input.

 13             You have included input from the

 14   developer.  I'm sorry, and no offense to Mr. Cox,

 15   but when I googled Avalon Bay, the second thing

 16   that came up was the Better Business Bureau, and

 17   they have a D rating.

 18             Just some of the results that came out

 19   of the APFO review committee, that I think are

 20   pertinent to this -- and I apologize to the

 21   representatives from Realty Group, but you're

 22   talking about including exemptions for, I believe
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  1   it might be mid-rise housing.  And the projections

  2   for Montgomery County Public Schools that they

  3   used, we found it notable that they miscalculated

  4   that area consistently, specifically, in areas

  5   with the residential communities.  And I'll cite

  6   you two that are included in the appendix to our

  7   recommendations, which is the King Farm Huntington

  8   North.  They projected 18 students from that unit,

  9   King Farm Huntington South, 17 students.  The

 10   actual amount of students is 80.  The changing

 11   demographic that's consistent with our economic

 12   environment, is that the student generation rates

 13   by Montgomery County are flawed.  And we proposed

 14   that they look into this and that the City of

 15   Rockville provide input to that review.  They

 16   consistently have miscalculated estimates for

 17   schools.  Julius West right now is the best

 18   example of where they've missed the mark.  That

 19   school is now going to be renovated with the kids

 20   occupying it.  I have a question for everyone that

 21   has students that are going to that school that

 22   they should ask of you is, will the workers be
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  1   wearing masks when they do that?  That building

  2   was built in 1960.  Have they done sufficient core

  3   samples on that building to make sure there's no

  4   hazardous materials that will be in there.  And if

  5   so, how are they going to mitigate it?

  6             I worked at the government printing

  7   office, and I worked on the facilities there.  We

  8   closed off the entire eighth floor to not allow

  9   people in there in mitigating the problems that

 10   occurred in that building.  And I'm not saying

 11   that's the case there, but this needs to be

 12   thoroughly reviewed, and if those construction

 13   workers are wearing masks, I think we have a huge

 14   problem.  I would ask the people to look at this,

 15   and then I'd ask them to look at our results that

 16   are provided, not in (inaudible), but under

 17   adequate public facilities ordinance review

 18   committee.  Thank you.  (Applause)

 19             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Robin Corridon to be

 20   followed by Peter Witzler.  I think we had Peter

 21   earlier, Erica Leatham.

 22             MS. CORRIDON:  My name is Robin Pumphry
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  1   Corridon, and I'm a resident of Rockville,

  2   residing at 433 Winding Rose Drive.  I'm here to

  3   urge the mayor and council to vote against any new

  4   waivers proposed by council members that would

  5   circumvent the APFO and proposals submitted by

  6   developers.  The APFO was passed after

  7   considerable time and efforts to further prevent

  8   overcrowding of schools, increases in residential

  9   density, and road congestion in Rockville.  The

 10   city does not control the increase in the number

 11   of schools and overcrowding, but it does control

 12   adding a large influx of students to already

 13   crowded schools.

 14             What is the current rush by councilmen

 15   Moore and Hall to terminate these protective

 16   measures for the city residents?  But the Planning

 17   Commission, and mayor and council have done an

 18   excellent job reviewing and determining

 19   appropriate development, both residential and

 20   commercial in the City of Rockville.  This needs

 21   to continue with the appropriate current

 22   guidelines that are in place.  To allow the
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  1   current and future mayor and council to circumvent

  2   the APFO and the Planning Commission for projects

  3   within 2,000 feet of any metro station and within

  4   the Town Center performance district, also shows

  5   total disregard for the current residents of

  6   Rockville.  What is the incentive for the

  7   requested waivers, and how will they benefit the

  8   residents of the city?

  9             The residents have not requested

 10   increases in residential density, growth in school

 11   enrollment, additional road congestion, and the

 12   resultant need for additional public services.

 13   Quality of life in Rockville will change, and not

 14   for an enhanced quality of life for Rockville

 15   citizens.  It's time for the mayor and council to

 16   listen to the residents of Rockville and not just

 17   the developers.  Thank you for your time and

 18   consideration.  (Applause)

 19             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Peter Witzler, I'm

 20   sorry, sir.  I forgot that you testified at

 21   citizen's forum.  You're welcome.  Come ahead.

 22             MR. WITZLER:  I've got a lot to say, so
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  1   I want to make sure I have some water.  In case I

  2   have to pull a Marco Rubio.  Thank you.  My name

  3   is Peter Witzler.  I live at 310 Croyden Avenue.

  4   My wife and I moved to Rockville in 2011 because

  5   we had a dream.  We had a dream to come here and

  6   raise a family.  And we've done that.  It's really

  7   exciting.  I have a 21-month-old son, Teddy.  And

  8   I have lots of dreams for Teddy, lots of dreams

  9   for Rockville, lots of dreams for my family.  I

 10   dream of Rockville playing high-school football or

 11   maybe to play soccer like his mom here in

 12   Rockville.  But right now, you know, the dream

 13   that I have for Rockville, I think, is really

 14   under attack.  As a parent, my son's education is

 15   my priority, and I'm here today to oppose the

 16   proposal submitted by councilors Hall and Moore to

 17   revise the APFO.

 18             I oppose it for a lot of reasons.  One

 19   of the most important is what I fear is a big

 20   impact on our school system.  Several people have

 21   already said -- councilors and people testifying,

 22   that schools are over capacity.  Well, I've got to
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  1   say I just don't quite understand the logic in

  2   place here.  So if schools are over capacity

  3   already, how does lifting the requirements on the

  4   APFO help that?  It just really boggles my mind.

  5   I don't quite get it.

  6             The other reason that I oppose these

  7   changes is that they've been, what I feel is

  8   falsely characterized as small, technical changes.

  9   So let me give you an example of what a small,

 10   technical change is -- changing 2A to 3A, small

 11   technical change.  What a small technical change

 12   is not, adding the word exempt for accessory

 13   apartments.  What a small technical change is --

 14   adding an and after a semicolon.  What a small

 15   technical change is not -- is lifting up the APFO

 16   within 2,000 feet of a metro station.

 17             Now I didn't go to law school.  I'm not

 18   a land-use attorney.  I'm not even a planner.  But

 19   I did learn some math and pi r squared, so you

 20   take three metro stations, you do the math, and

 21   you're talking about 36 million square feet of

 22   space that you have proposed to open up to
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  1   development -- that you have proposed to lift the

  2   APFO.

  3             Now there's a property in east Rockville

  4   on the corner of Park Avenue and Stone Street

  5   that's going for $850,000.  Now you'd think that'd

  6   be a big house.  It's not.  It's 800 square feet.

  7   You know the reason why it's going for $860,000?

  8   Because of the value of that land.  I tell you

  9   what, if I were a developer, I'd be going to buy

 10   that property.  I'd be offering people in my

 11   neighborhood money.  I'd be offering people in

 12   Twinbrook money.  I'd snatch up as much as I could

 13   get my hands on, assemble the properties, get a

 14   zoning variance and poof -- no more single-family

 15   neighborhood in east Rockville.  No more single

 16   family neighborhoods in Twinbrook within 2,000

 17   feet of a metro center.

 18             So I also am really opposed because I

 19   feel like what's been characterized is that we are

 20   just making these changes, we're implementing the

 21   changes that have been recommended by the APFO

 22   committee.  Well, I saw actually my brother, Tom,
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  1   left already, but he rightly said that there were

  2   lots of recommendations.  Those recommendations

  3   are not here in front of us right now.  So I've

  4   got a couple of questions for you guys on the

  5   recommendations.  You know, you keep asking us

  6   what we want to do, and what we've done, and what

  7   our proposals are.  Well, there were a lot of

  8   really good recommendations in the council in the

  9   APFO committee, one of which was to establish a

 10   community to advise the mayor and council on

 11   education.  Has that happened?  I don't think so.

 12   What have you done to publish the stats?  We've

 13   talked about the stats.  The stats are not right

 14   in their current calculation.  The stats are not

 15   really available for people to look at.  So you

 16   want to tell us to trust us, but let's be open and

 17   transparent and publish the stats.

 18             Some of the other things were about

 19   impact fees.  So let's bring developers to the

 20   table and talk about how we can get them here.  So

 21   you want to develop in Rockville?  You want to

 22   expand the capacity of the school?  Let's talk
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  1   about impact fees, and let's redevelop our schools

  2   that way.

  3             So, you know, I really feel that, again,

  4   the biggest impact for me is what I feel is my

  5   dream and my vision for the way I want to live in

  6   Rockville is really under attack right now.  It's

  7   not just me.  It's Teddy.  And it's not just

  8   Teddy.  It's Teddy's education and the education

  9   of Teddy's classmates that are here right now, and

 10   will be here in the future.

 11             Now I've got to tell you right now.  I

 12   want to stay in Rockville.  I do.  But at the

 13   current rate of what's happening here, I don't

 14   know anymore.  I don't know if Rockville is where

 15   I want to make a home.  I want to make a home

 16   where people are going to invest in education and

 17   invest in Teddy.

 18             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  You're summed up, I

 19   hope, because you're way over the time.

 20             MR. WITZLER:  I'm sorry.  I'm over.  I

 21   have a lot to say.  It's a very important issue,

 22   and I think that's the other thing is that you --
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  1             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Put it in writing for

  2   us.

  3             MR. WITZLER:  -- this one single public

  4   hearing is just clearly not enough.

  5             MR. MOORE:  I do have one question.

  6             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  That's a good thought.

  7   Yes, your question?

  8             MR. MOORE:  Mr. Witzler, thanks again

  9   for coming to testify for us.

 10             MR. WITZLER:  Sure.

 11             MR. MOORE:  You heard Planning

 12   Commissioner Goodman speak about how important

 13   school overcrowding issues are to her.  If we did

 14   have waiver provisions, and a project were before

 15   the Planning Commission, would you trust her to

 16   make a good choice on that?

 17             MR. WITZLER:  I don't know about that,

 18   but what I do know is that the public should be

 19   involved in any decision that would greatly affect

 20   not only the current and future residents of

 21   Rockville, and I don't see that happening right

 22   now.
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  1             MR. MOORE:  Well this wouldn't change

  2   any of that.  That's a different set of

  3   structures, but, you know, there are people on the

  4   Planning Commission and people up here, you know,

  5   who care deeply about the schools.  Would you

  6   trust folks like Commissioner Goodman to make

  7   those decisions?

  8             MR. WITZLER:  Well, you're asking me to

  9   put trust in public officials, and, you know, at

 10   its basic core I want to do that, but I've got to

 11   tell you right now, I feel like my trust is being

 12   betrayed.  The trust of the APFO committee has

 13   been betrayed because they have made

 14   recommendations.  Those recommendations are not in

 15   front of us right now, and I have not seen then

 16   implemented.  So you want to talk about trust?

 17   Let's talk about trust.  (Applause)

 18             MR. MOORE:  You know that the APFO --

 19             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  You had your question,

 20   sir.  You had your question, sir.

 21             MR. MOORE:  You know that the APFO

 22   committee --
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  1             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Oh, all right, ignore

  2   the process.

  3             MR. MOORE:  -- was a committee of the

  4   Planning Commission, right?

  5             MR. WITZLER:  I know that the APFO

  6   committee was a committee of peers who live in

  7   Rockville, except for two people who didn't.  For

  8   some reason they had input on the future of

  9   Rockville.  So what I do know is that they were

 10   public involved.

 11             MR. MOORE:  Right.

 12             MR. WITZLER:  And I don't see that

 13   public involvement.  You know, there's two ways to

 14   think about public engagement.  Let's just take a

 15   box and say, "Let's engage the public."  We could

 16   do it that way.

 17             MR. MOORE:  Yep.

 18             MR. WITZLER:  Or we could actually

 19   really engage the public and take what they

 20   recommend and implement it.

 21             MR. MOORE:  So they made the report to

 22   the Planning Commission, and the Planning
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  1   Commission made the report to us.  Is that what

  2   happened, as far as you know?

  3             MR. WITZLER:  As far as I know, the

  4   public has not been thoroughly involved in this

  5   process.  So decisions so dramatically impacting

  6   my son's future, I expect more.

  7             MR. MOORE:  Okay, thank you.  (Applause)

  8             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you, sir.  I

  9   think in all fairness, if you don't mind, I think

 10   the two of you ought to tighten up your questions

 11   a little so that we can move on with this

 12   schedule.

 13             MR. WITZLER:  Oh, I'm happy to answer

 14   any question you guys have.

 15             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  I'm sure you are, but

 16   we have a lot of folks out here who've been

 17   waiting for hours to give their testimony.  And I

 18   think we owe it to them to let them do it.  If you

 19   have a short question, and not a statement Mr.

 20   Pierzchala, I will give you the floor.

 21             MR. PIERZCHALA:  You do realize that no

 22   developer has the power to ask for a waiver to
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  1   change a single-family zone to anything else.

  2             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  You want a yes or a no

  3   out of that?

  4             MR. WITZLER:  Is that a question or a

  5   statement?

  6             MR. PIERZCHALA:  Yeah, I said you do

  7   realize that no developer has that power.

  8             MR. WITZLER:  Well, what I do realize is

  9   that the current proposal as it stands right now,

 10   would dramatically impact my son's education, and

 11   I'm opposed to it.

 12             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Okay, let's move on.

 13   (Applause)  We now have Erica Leatham, to be

 14   followed by Patricia Casillas or Casillas, excuse

 15   me.

 16             MS. LEATHAM:  Hi, good evening.  I'm

 17   Erica Leatham with the law firm of Ballard Spahr

 18   speaking tonight on behalf of several property

 19   owners in Rockville.  I want to thank the mayor

 20   and council for having this, what is a difficult

 21   discussion, but the APFO and the APFS are evolving

 22   documents, and every so often it's necessary to
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  1   look at them, and look at them holistically, and

  2   in the weeds to make sure they're functioning with

  3   a maximum of clarity and integrity.

  4             There are important technical standards

  5   that should be addressed at this time to remove

  6   some of the uncertainty surrounding how and when

  7   to count school capacity.  This is a benefit for

  8   all the stakeholders.  They are succinctly

  9   outlined.  These recommendations are succinctly

 10   outlined in the letter from Avalon Bay and EYA,

 11   and I won't repeat them here.  However, I will say

 12   that these are critical clarifications, as they

 13   provide the clarity where none exists today, which

 14   in turn helps the continued sustainability and

 15   economic development of the city.

 16             These do not represent changes to the

 17   substance of the ordinance or the standards, but

 18   are technical revisions to react to changing

 19   circumstances.  There are also, as we have heard,

 20   proposals to establish waivers from certain

 21   elements of the APFO.  The two proposals differ in

 22   scope, but both attempt to balance the city's
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  1   re-development goals with the APFS.

  2             We support a waiver provision, provided

  3   that it reflects all of the city's goals, not just

  4   its geographic ones.  There are highly desirable

  5   and beneficial projects located outside of the

  6   metro areas that reflect the city's sustainability

  7   and housing goals.  If the city's goal is to

  8   facilitate the redevelopment of under-utilized

  9   ground, then it should look beyond simply the

 10   metro areas, as other jurisdictions do and allow

 11   waivers under certain conditions.

 12             We will provide some suggested text in

 13   our written comments.  In addition, we believe

 14   that certain uses simply do not need a waiver, as

 15   they clearly do not generate school children or

 16   traffic, such as senior housing or the re-use of

 17   existing buildings; and therefore, should be

 18   exempted rather than have to apply for a waiver.

 19   Thank you.

 20             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  Patricia

 21   Casillas.

 22             MS. CASILLAS:  Good evening, mayor and
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  1   council.  My name is Patricia Casillas, and I live

  2   at 208 Rose Petal Way in Rockville.  I am here to

  3   voice my opposition to the proposed waiver

  4   position of the APFS.  Recently, I've had many

  5   dealings with the city and city staff, as some of

  6   you know, on the council.  And my experience has

  7   been that whenever we have issues before the city

  8   that don't have clear rules, and don't have things

  9   that have been documented thoroughly, it's very

 10   difficult for the city to react in favor of

 11   residents.  They're usually much more willing to

 12   listen to developers and other people coming in.

 13   Consequently, I don't feel that any changes

 14   providing waivers to something that's already in

 15   place and working, is going to work well for the

 16   citizens.

 17             I have had so many challenges with the

 18   city.  Personally, my community has had many

 19   challenges with the city, and I would prefer to

 20   keep rules as much as possible, as they protect

 21   our schools, our traffic and situations.  Right

 22   now I have two children.  I did not send them to
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  1   schools in the City of Rockville or in the county.

  2   I chose to pay for their schooling, mainly because

  3   the schools in this area are so overcrowded.  So I

  4   would appreciate your consideration in not

  5   changing the APFS.  Thank you.

  6             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  Ray

  7   Whalen.  Ray Whalen to be followed by Jesse Stahr.

  8             SPEAKER:  Can we ask how many more

  9   witnesses there are?

 10             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  There are four more

 11   that are signed up.  There undoubtedly are

 12   individuals who want to speak that have not signed

 13   up, so make a best guess here.  Sorry, Mr. Whalen.

 14             MR. WHALEN:  All right.  Good evening,

 15   Madam Mayor and councilmembers.  My name is Ray

 16   Whalen, and I live at 12 Wall Street.  Asking the

 17   question, what is the right balance with the APFO?

 18   It's an elusive answer, and it will change from

 19   time to time.  But one thing that must be

 20   considered when you're talking about APFO, it

 21   can't be discussed in a vacuum without talking

 22   also the effect of the tax base of the City of
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  1   Rockville.  Because that does definitely have an

  2   affect on the tax base of the City of Rockville.

  3             The City of Rockville raises revenues

  4   three ways.  It's going to do it through economic

  5   development -- first off, one thing we all can

  6   agree on, the costs to the city are always going

  7   to increase.  They've probably never had a budget

  8   that went down.  And so you're going to raise the

  9   revenue three ways.  You're going to raise taxes.

 10   You're going to get it through economic

 11   development, or you're going to find ways to

 12   provide services cheaper or cut services.  That's

 13   it.  There's really no other way to raise the

 14   revenue.

 15             And last summer this mayor and council

 16   gathered dozens of citizens at the economic summit

 17   to consider the economic viability in the near and

 18   the long term and to identify some of the

 19   challenges and make recommendations on what the

 20   city needed to do.  This wasn't a group of

 21   developers -- and first let me say all of these

 22   citizens here in part of our gathering sessions --
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  1   we don't look at, I don't think many people, or

  2   hardly any, have looked at, well, it's the

  3   business over here.  It's the residents over here.

  4   We look at it as one community that's

  5   multi-faceted.  You can't have a vibrant

  6   residential area if you don't have jobs and

  7   shopping and services and employers.  And you

  8   can't have a good business community, unless you

  9   have a vibrant residential area for people to live

 10   and they want to come and shop at your place.  You

 11   really need the synergy.  You have to try always,

 12   and that's going to change.  It's tough questions

 13   on creating the right balance.  And part of that

 14   balance, what you try to do is, you try to pay

 15   your bills, and you need a tax base to do so.

 16             So with me tonight, I have the report

 17   from 2012.  And this is a durable document from

 18   the economic summit.  I really would hope that a

 19   lot of people who weren't involved with it, go

 20   ahead and take a look at it because these are your

 21   neighbors, not a bunch of developers in the room.

 22   We had several committees, and they recognized --
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  1   there was a common theme.  First off, we have to

  2   have economic development of some sort, and that

  3   includes maybe apartments.  It doesn't mean just

  4   15-story office buildings, but some sort to

  5   enhance and protect the tax base.  Otherwise, you

  6   will be in the scenario as I mentioned earlier.

  7             So I'm just going to read you a part of

  8   it.  This is the common theme.  There's lots in

  9   here.  And there's lots of all these communities

 10   talking about balance.  But I'm going to talk

 11   about the common theme as it applies to the APFO.

 12   The education and school capacity committee

 13   recommendation:  Modify the APFO to harmonize with

 14   the county.  Look at the members on that

 15   committee.  These are some people really

 16   knowledgeable in education.  Housing committee:

 17   Modify the city APFO to mirror the county APFO.

 18             The job growth and residential work

 19   force -- they said increase the commercial tax

 20   base through redevelopment.  I'll read further in

 21   there into their report.  Preserving Rockville's

 22   charter -- one of the challenges they see is a
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  1   constrained tax base.  In all these conversations

  2   it always goes back to when many areas of the city

  3   to the APFO.  Yes, some people are building, but

  4   for example, Town Center is not.

  5             As far as a recommendation -- encourage

  6   business and broaden our tax base.  There again,

  7   all these people, you know, all these reports we

  8   read about that talk about that elusive proper

  9   balance.  The city services and budget committee

 10   which I chair.  The city should perform a

 11   competitive analysis between Rockville,

 12   Gaithersburg, and Montgomery County that would

 13   include zoning et cetera, et cetera, et cetera, to

 14   understand Rockville's competitive advantages and

 15   disadvantages.  The APFO is at a distinct

 16   competitive disadvantage, and we are competing for

 17   the people who will use our services and roads.

 18   They can build on the edge of town, as well as

 19   they can build in town.  So we are competing for

 20   that tax base.

 21             Back to the preservation of Rockville's

 22   character -- under their encouraged business,
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  1   broaden our tax base they wrote in part.  This

  2   means that the greatest potential for increasing

  3   city revenue comes from the broadening of the

  4   property tax base by carefully encouraging and

  5   increasing the number of businesses in Rockville.

  6             Back to the traffic and transportation

  7   -- adequate public facilities ordinance includes

  8   restrictions on traffic at intersections primarily

  9   on state roads.  These restrictions tend to limit

 10   desired development.  For example, in the Town

 11   Center area.

 12             Now all through here I'm going to say

 13   again, there's a lot of conversation about

 14   balance.  These are your neighbors.  These are not

 15   just a bunch of rapacious developers trying to

 16   come into town and make a buck.  And they looked

 17   at the challenges for the city, their budgets, the

 18   cost, and you need a tax base.  So I appreciate a

 19   lot of the comments the people make, and yes,

 20   there are some real issues.  But you cannot look

 21   at it in absence of these.  These people, these

 22   dozens of citizens spent months, all spring and
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  1   summer working hard, working with city staff,

  2   working with real numbers, working -- and I'm sure

  3   a lot of our neighbors here have to -- working

  4   with real numbers, looking at experts'

  5   information, and having experts come in to make

  6   this report.

  7             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Can you wrap up?

  8             MR. WHALEN:  Yes, I apologize.  So I

  9   would really encourage you all.  Everybody spent a

 10   lot of time on this.  This document is a durable

 11   document.  It's not that hard to read.  I would

 12   encourage the mayor and council and all the

 13   residents -- I think it was online, I suppose it

 14   probably still is online -- to take a look at it

 15   and then I think it might open the question for

 16   how do we strike the right balance?  Thank you.

 17             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right, Jesse Stahr

 18   is next to be followed by Andrea Jolly.

 19             MS. STAHR:  Good evening.  Jesse Stahr,

 20   residence, 103 North Street.  I am in opposition

 21   of the new waiver provisional allowance in the

 22   APFO for a couple of reasons, not the least of
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  1   which is it grants the authority to a transient

  2   government body to make approvals to such waivers.

  3   And I'm very uncomfortable with that.  While I'm

  4   sure you all are very well-intentioned people,

  5   those who might seek to replace you 10, 15, or 20

  6   years down the road may not be.

  7             So with that in mind, I have school-age

  8   children, or about to be school-age children, and

  9   I'm not willing to risk their suffering the

 10   repercussions of not thinking this all the way

 11   through.

 12             In another sense, what Mr. Zaletsky more

 13   eloquently stated was, the existing standards are

 14   not fraught with the subjective terminology, such

 15   as transit- oriented.  It's just not open for

 16   interpretation.  Either you meet the standard or

 17   you don't.  That's what I'm comfortable with.

 18   Questions?

 19             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.

 20             MR. MOORE:  I have a quick question.

 21   One thing that we've been thinking about when

 22   we've been considering all this is Town Center.  I
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  1   mean that's obviously been a major focus of our

  2   deliberations.  If Town Center were still a

  3   parking lot, if that area was still a parking lot,

  4   it couldn't be built today under the APFS and the

  5   APFO as they stand.  Would the city be better off

  6   overall if that were the case?

  7             MR. STAHR:  That's an interesting

  8   question.  Do you suppose it would still be a

  9   parking lot today if those standards existed and

 10   nobody pushed forward then to implement

 11   improvements and infrastructure, such that it

 12   would take to support it?

 13             MR. MOORE:  Put it this way.  The Giant

 14   was an empty parking lot for more than ten years.

 15             MR. STAHR:  Sure, a very long time.

 16             MR. MOORE:  I mean it could vary a

 17   little bit.

 18             MR. STAHR:  But that property's

 19   valuable.  Eventually, somebody would figure that

 20   out, and they would lobby sufficient to get the

 21   infrastructure improved such to improve the lot.

 22             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right.  Andrea.
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  1   You have a question?

  2             SPEAKER:  I'd just like to clarify

  3   something.  The Giant was vacant for ten years

  4   because Giant had a lease with the owner that they

  5   paid for so that nobody could move in there.  So

  6   that had nothing to do with our APFO.  I just

  7   wanted to make that point.  (Applause)

  8             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right.  Jesse

  9   Stahr.  He's just spoken.  Andrea Jolly is next,

 10   and after that Sam Stiebel.  I hope I have the

 11   right order here.  If anyone signed up for a

 12   different hearing let me know.  We seem to have a

 13   little bit of confusion, but Andrea I'm sure --

 14             MS. JOLLY:  I'm pretty sure I'm at the

 15   right place.

 16             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Good evening, Madam

 17   Mayor, and members of the council.  I'm Andrea

 18   Jolly, and I'm the president of the Rockville

 19   Chamber of Commerce.  We are located at 1 Research

 20   Court in Rockville.

 21             The Rockville Chamber of Commerce

 22   supports the amendments proposed by council
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  1   members Hall and Moore.  The business community

  2   believes that some adjustments need to be made to

  3   the APFS to encourage new business in the transit

  4   zones in the Town Center.

  5             We believe that the proposed changes

  6   will maintain the quality of life in Rockville,

  7   while allowing the kind of growth that we need to

  8   maintain our tax base so that the city can

  9   continue to fund the services that make Rockville

 10   a special place in which to live and work.  Short

 11   and sweet.

 12             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.

 13             MR. JOLLY:  Any questions?  Thank you.

 14             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Sam Stiebel is next,

 15   with Chetan Sabnis.

 16             MS. LEATHAM:  I'm not Sam.  He had to

 17   leave, but I'm going to read his statement.  Good

 18   evening, for the record, Erica Leatham with

 19   Ballard Spahr testifying on behalf of Hungerford

 20   Retail II, an affiliate of JBG.  They're the

 21   owners of the old former Giant on North Washington

 22   Street.
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  1             As the mayor and council is aware, JBG

  2   demolished the Giant building recently, and is in

  3   the process of constructing a new jewel box

  4   commercial building along North Washington Street

  5   in the northern section of the Rockville Town

  6   Center district.

  7             JBG also owns several other properties

  8   within the same block.  Development of those

  9   properties has not begun for a number of reasons.

 10   Primarily, the market for additional office space

 11   is almost non-existent leaving residential

 12   development as one of the only viable options for

 13   the sites.

 14             Residential uses would bolster the

 15   economic stability of the city by adding taxpayers

 16   and customers for the existing retail base,

 17   perhaps even providing additional retail space for

 18   the city's small businesses.  Studies have shown

 19   that the new residential high-rise buildings

 20   generate tax benefits that exceed the cost, since

 21   they produce fewer children going to local schools

 22   and more younger residents with higher salaries.
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  1             However, residential development cannot

  2   proceed at this point in time, pursuant to the

  3   city's APFO and APFS.  According to a recent

  4   report by the Maryland sustainable growth

  5   commission, Rockville had one of the few APFO

  6   produced moratorium in the state in 2012.  We are,

  7   therefore, pleased that the city is considering a

  8   safety valve to allow certain residential projects

  9   to move forward in the near future.

 10             Specifically, these proposals for

 11   waivers target those projects in transit-oriented

 12   areas where the city has decided to focus its

 13   growth.  JBG supports this change to the

 14   standards.  We suggest some specific changes to

 15   the proposed language to address the comments from

 16   the Planning Commission about eligibility for a

 17   waiver, versus the findings for a waiver, for both

 18   the schools and the transportation test, and we'll

 19   submit that language separately.

 20             In summary, with respect to the schools'

 21   test, beginning with the council members' version,

 22   the initial eligibility criteria requires that the
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  1   property be located in the Town Center Performance

  2   District or 2,000 feet from a metro station.  If

  3   the property meets either geographical

  4   requirement, the approving authority must review

  5   the request for the waiver and find for

  6   residential project.  The project is one,

  7   consistent with the relevant master plan, and two,

  8   promotes the city's economic development goals.

  9   For a waiver from the transportation standards,

 10   the approving authority must conclude that the

 11   project again, is consistent with the relevant

 12   master plan, promotes the city's economic

 13   development goals.  Third, includes components to

 14   encourage walking, biking, and alternate modes of

 15   transportation.  And four, replaces or re-uses an

 16   existing building or other improvements.  Thank

 17   you.

 18             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Chetan Sabnis.

 19             MR. SABNIS:  Hi, I'm Chetan Sabnis.  I'm

 20   a Rockville resident for the last 14 years, and I

 21   live at 109 Grand Champion Drive.  My fellow

 22   residents have made several strong arguments today
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  1   describing the lack of specificity on the proposed

  2   changes of the APFO, how it's being rushed with

  3   inaccurate data, and how it's ignoring the

  4   recommendations of the Planning Commission.

  5             I think there is a similar piece of

  6   legislation that this reminds me of -- back in

  7   January 2012 at the federal level where special

  8   interests were pitted against the internet

  9   community at large.  This community of internet

 10   users organized themselves, recognized the quality

 11   of life that was going to change and affect them,

 12   and they organized and reached out against SOPA.

 13   Once they organized and saw the clear black and

 14   white issue of residents versus special interests,

 15   they, you know, organized to the point where

 16   members of Congress are now afraid to touch the

 17   legislation again.

 18             I feel that this is the same thing for

 19   Rockville.  This is Rockville's SOPA moment.  This

 20   legislation should be rejected for the fact that

 21   it does not have specificity.  It does not have

 22   accurate data that's driving it.  And it does not
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  1   have the Planning Commission's endorsement.  That

  2   recipe is not one that I hold Rockville to.  I

  3   expect more of Rockville, and I ask that the mayor

  4   and the council reject it on that basis.  Thank

  5   you.

  6             MR. MOORE:  I do have a question.

  7             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Go ahead.  Do you have

  8   a question?  (Applause)

  9             MR. MOORE:  Again, thank you for coming

 10   to testify.  I've got a question for you.  Today

 11   is September 30th, and we're hoping -- you know,

 12   we started on this path almost at the very

 13   beginning of our term.  So we've been working on

 14   this for the better part of two years.

 15             There was another major land use law,

 16   where it was kind of proceeding along the same

 17   schedule.  The public hearing was on October 10th.

 18   They did discussion and instruction on October

 19   24th, and they actually voted on it November 5th,

 20   the day right before the election.  Does that

 21   strike you as rushed and improper?

 22             MR. SABNIS:  I think that I've just
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  1   found out about this very recently.  And, you

  2   know, I feel like I'm a pretty informed citizen

  3   who's involved in civics.  Part of my job is to be

  4   informed in local civics.  And, you know, I think

  5   this -- to me it feels like, you know, whenever

  6   you talk to a resident, they're outraged to mildly

  7   annoyed, but nobody is in favor of this.  There's

  8   not a single resident who, once they're informed

  9   of the issue, is in favor of it.

 10                  (Applause)

 11             MR. MOORE:  Okay, thank you.  My

 12   question was, do you think land use legislation

 13   passed on that schedule would be improper in some

 14   way?

 15             MR. SABNIS:  I think, again, that the

 16   point is that there needs to be awareness.  And

 17   once there's awareness, I think people will come

 18   to the same conclusion when they're residents.

 19             MR. MOORE:  Well, thank you.  The reason

 20   I asked is because --

 21             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  He's trying to --

 22             MR. MOORE:  The reason I asked --
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  1             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  He wants to prove that

  2   somehow this was rushed through before, and I

  3   think that this is an inappropriate way to

  4   approach it, sir --

  5             MR. MOORE:  Madam Mayor.

  6             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  -- if you don't mind.

  7   I think you've asked your question.  Let's move

  8   on.

  9             MR. MOORE:  If I may have just another

 10   point, just another moment.  The reason I asked is

 11   because that's how the original APFO was passed.

 12   The first hearing was October 10th.  They gave

 13   instructions two weeks later, and they passed the

 14   day before the election.  You know, by that

 15   standard, we're taking all the time in the world

 16   to look at these revisions to that thing that they

 17   passed in that amount of time.

 18             MR. SABNIS:  In respect to the mayor's

 19   request, I'm not going to answer that.

 20             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  All right,

 21   now I think, we're not absolutely certain we've

 22   gotten everybody because there might be a little
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  1   change in these two sheets.  However, we have,

  2   ahh, some more things have appeared.  All right.

  3   We'll try this one.  We have a few more folks who

  4   have signed up, and then we will have exhausted

  5   the sign-up list.  There are two other individuals

  6   who have said they'd like to speak.  That's Marian

  7   Hall and Dalton Potter.  And then I will have no

  8   other names, so we'll have to go to the audience.

  9   Just a minute.  All right, we have Marian Hall.

 10             MS. HALL:  Good evening --

 11             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Good evening.

 12             MS. HALL:  -- mayor and councilmembers.

 13   I am a member of west end, and I have lived in

 14   Rockville continuously for 35 years and prior to

 15   that in the beginning in 1949, and I've seen

 16   Rockville go through many changes.  I think the

 17   APFO probably has some issues with it and some

 18   things that might need to be changed.  But I do

 19   think that this needs to go back to the drawing

 20   board.  We need to be looking at some other

 21   things, and I think one of the big things that the

 22   government of the City of Rockville needs to do is
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  1   somehow or another, communicate with the county

  2   and the state to get us adequate schools, and some

  3   of this issue will lay to rest.  And I do

  4   understand that it's very important for us to keep

  5   track of our tax basis, so that we can afford to

  6   do the things we like to do, and have the roads we

  7   want to have, and one thing and another.  But

  8   without a better hold on our schools -- we have

  9   historically had very well-rated schools, and yet

 10   mysteriously in the last several years, we have

 11   had at our senior schools, people failing their

 12   math at the end of the year.  That doesn't make

 13   any sense whatsoever except perhaps the schools

 14   are overcrowded and there isn't sufficient

 15   student/teacher ratio.  So anyway, I think we need

 16   to --

 17             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  Thank you

 18   very much.

 19             MS. HALL:  -- go back to the drawing

 20   board please.

 21             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right, the next

 22   speaker is Dalton Potter.  Right, Mr. Potter?



9/30/13 Mayor & Council Meeting Agenda Item No. 10 Page: 105

Anderson Court Reporting -- 703-519-7180 -- www.andersonreporting.net

  1             MR. POTTER:  Yes, I would respectfully

  2   say that most of the points that I could possibly

  3   come up with have really been made.  But during

  4   the course of discussion, Mr.  Moore and Mr. Hall

  5   both had some questions that I think might be

  6   worth visiting.  Clearly, you folks are in this

  7   position where you've got a lot of citizens that

  8   have one opinion.  And it seems that the opinions

  9   of the developers and people who are looking at

 10   this from the standpoint of the small business,

 11   you know, the Chamber of Commerce, they're sort

 12   of, you know, we'd like to see some development.

 13   We'd like to see more income into Rockville.

 14   That's all great.

 15             Councilman Hall, you suggested that

 16   there would be exemptions for the development of

 17   schools specifically.  Well, it seems to me that

 18   you could conceivably write into these regulations

 19   that there would be exemptions for schools

 20   specifically, as opposed to leaving it as broad.

 21   I think a lot of the citizens that I've listened

 22   to tonight are concerned about a lack of
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  1   specificity.

  2             But I'm also hearing that there's an

  3   overlapping set of jurisdictions here so that the

  4   schools, which are the jurisdiction of the county,

  5   not of Rockville City, if they want to put a

  6   school district in Rockville City, do they have to

  7   ask you guys permission to meet your --

  8             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  We have no authority

  9   over the Montgomery County --

 10             MR. POTTER:  So that sort of is a mute

 11   point.  Is it not?

 12             MR. HALL:  No, not entirely.  They are

 13   subject to certain review standards.  What we

 14   wanted to do was to say, let's ensure as few

 15   barriers as possible to something that we all

 16   really want.

 17             MR. POTTER:  Okay, yeah obviously

 18   overcrowding in the schools is an issue.

 19             MR. HALL:  And several of the changes

 20   that were made in there are of a similar nature to

 21   -- one of the reasons that the city's land-use

 22   authority was actually threatened, had to deal
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  1   with school facilities, portables, and the fire

  2   standards.  And so what we've done in that

  3   particular area is in two places to revise those

  4   fire standards and also to get the portables in

  5   the schools out of the mix.

  6             So we're just trying to reduce threats

  7   to the viability of not only that statute, but

  8   also all of our land-use authority.

  9             MR. POTTER:  I understand.

 10             MR. MOORE:  To follow up on that, we did

 11   actually specify the schools -- MCPS schools and

 12   portable classrooms are something that we

 13   specified in the exemptions.  We were pretty

 14   specific on that.  To echo councilmember Hall, the

 15   reason we did that is because we thought that if

 16   the APFO in the city ever blocked a school from

 17   being built, that all of these people would show

 18   up with torches.  So we wanted to avoid that at

 19   all costs.

 20             MR. POTTER:  You've got them here

 21   tonight for sure.

 22             MR. MOORE:  No torches though.
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  1   (Laughter)

  2             MR. POTTER:  I'd like to just

  3   respectfully suggest that maybe you guys need to

  4   clarify what your intentions are with these

  5   exemption regulations.  Thank you very much.

  6             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  Now,

  7   again, I'm not certain which list is proper here.

  8   But according to one list, we've exhausted you,

  9   yet I have another list which may or may not -- if

 10   you're not to speak at this particular hearing,

 11   just say so because I'm going to read you the

 12   names.  They may be for the other hearing, okay?

 13   So it's just that the pages got mixed up.  All

 14   right?

 15             So I have Dr. William Morgan.  Is this

 16   your hearing, sir?  This is the one you wanted to

 17   speak at?

 18             DR. MORGAN:  Yeah.

 19             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Please, come to the

 20   podium.

 21             DR. MORGAN:  (Inaudible) mixed up, and I

 22   originally put down on the wrong one.
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  1             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  That's quite all

  2   right.  We'll figure it out.

  3             DR. MORGAN:  Well, good evening.

  4             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Good evening.

  5             DR. MORGAN:  My wife and I moved to

  6   Rockville, I can't believe, 62 years ago for a

  7   job, of course.  We live on Upton Street.  Our

  8   daughters went to Bell Elementary before it was

  9   overcrowded and the other mid-school before it was

 10   overcrowded.  We have seen many changes in

 11   Rockville during the past 60 years from street

 12   cars to the metro.  That's a big change.  Some of

 13   you don't even remember the street cars.  Most

 14   changes have been positive, particularly the Town

 15   Center.  You notice I didn't mention the Rockville

 16   Mall.

 17             We are very concerned about the proposed

 18   waiver to the APFO and strongly oppose the waiver.

 19   We do have an ordinance on the books to prevent

 20   overcrowding of the schools and highways.  If only

 21   a whim we could ignore the overcrowding.

 22             The schools and roads are overcrowded
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  1   now.  We have to go down West Montgomery Avenue

  2   which we try to get on now and then, and it's

  3   really crowded.  And Bell Elementary has a lot of

  4   outdoor classrooms.  With the school overcrowding

  5   problem (inaudible) want to bypass APFO.  If

  6   changes are needed to accommodate desired

  7   development in a specific area of the city, then

  8   the changes should be limited to that specific

  9   area or project, and with specific calculation of

 10   the impact the project will be allowed to have on

 11   schools and traffic.  Thank you for your time.

 12   I'm sorry I'm trying to read.  My eyes aren't all

 13   that good anymore.

 14             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you, sir.

 15   Robert Whitfield is next, to be followed by Ed

 16   Matos.

 17             MR. WHITFIELD:  I've modified it a

 18   little bit from hearing previous comments, and

 19   comments from mayor and council.  Thank you very

 20   much for allowing me to talk.  I moved here 30

 21   years ago in 1983.  I live about 4,500 feet from

 22   the Rockville metro station on the circle next to
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  1   the apartment building.  When I built my house, I

  2   did it specifically so I could use the sunlight.

  3   And under the existing zoning rules, my quiet

  4   enjoyment of my property was taken from me without

  5   compensation, and without consultation.  Ten years

  6   ago I asked the mayor and council to at least

  7   moratorium so that subsequent neighbors could then

  8   comment about adverse effects.  This was ignored.

  9   When I talked to a member of the city, I was told

 10   I could sue if I wanted and lose.  I could move my

 11   (inaudible), or I could just move.

 12             Now I see you guys wanting to ask for

 13   waivers.  I'm against them.  I don't trust you

 14   guys, and what I want to know is when are you

 15   going to waiver the waiver, so we can just have a

 16   little bit more.  And I'm only 4,500 feet from the

 17   subway station.  You already have 18 and 15-story

 18   buildings in the movie theater area that are

 19   already being asked to have smaller apartments so

 20   you can put just a few more families in there.

 21   Thank you very much.  (Applause)

 22             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Ed Matos.  Oh, there
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  1   he is, and then he's to be followed by Steven

  2   Gobel.

  3             MR. MATOS:  My name's Edward Matos.  I'm

  4   at 1940 Louis Avenue in Twinbrook, where I've been

  5   for 25 years.  My kids all graduated from the

  6   schools before they got overcrowded.  I'm kind of

  7   a simple guy.  I haven't done a lot of research

  8   into all of the -- whether all the T's have been

  9   crossed or the I's dotted or vice versa as it

 10   might be.  But I worry about waivers to rules

 11   because in my view, and I'm a simple guy, in my

 12   view a waiver from a rule attacks the rule itself.

 13   If the APFO is bad for the residents of Rockville

 14   because development is going to be retarded, then

 15   let's put it on the ballot.  Let's let the APFO

 16   reflect what the residents want because I kind of

 17   feel like I should waive my time here because so

 18   many of the points that I wanted to make, have

 19   already been made.  But a couple of more telling

 20   ones are -- one speaker brought up the fact that

 21   the impetus for these amendments didn't come from

 22   residents.  You guys are supposed to represent the
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  1   residents, if I'm not mistaken.  The developers

  2   who have asked for these waivers -- how many of

  3   them actually live in Rockville?  How many of them

  4   are actually going to have to live with the

  5   consequences of that from which they seek to

  6   profit?  In my view, the mayor and the council

  7   need to take that into consideration.  If we're

  8   just going to willy nilly build things and not

  9   worry too much about the effect that it's going to

 10   have on schools and water and traffic and other

 11   things, then let's just get rid of the AFPO, and

 12   let's live in that kind of a town.

 13             But I don't think that the people who

 14   are here want that kind of town.  I know I don't

 15   want it, and I think that you guys are going down

 16   the wrong path because -- I was president of my

 17   local union and there were times when our

 18   executive board would consider a waiver to a rule

 19   that we had.  But that waiver was only a

 20   recommendation to the general membership.  If the

 21   general membership didn't like it, it didn't

 22   happen.  And that's the way it's going to be here
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  1   too.  Thank you very much.  (Applause)

  2             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Steven Gobel, to be

  3   followed by Phil and Jean Rosenburg.  Steve Gobel.

  4   Is he here?

  5             SPEAKER:  Perhaps he's speaking on a

  6   different matter, so you can --

  7             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Maybe it's the other

  8   one.  What about Phil and Jean Rosenburg?

  9             MR. ROSENBURG:  You can take us off the

 10   list.

 11             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  It's the other, the

 12   other public hearing?  Jim Vitol.  Okay, we've got

 13   one.

 14             MR. VITOL:  Good evening, Madam Mayor,

 15   and members of the council.  I'd like to take a

 16   little broader perspective of why we're here

 17   tonight.  And I submit to you that we're here

 18   tonight because the AFPO has been a success that

 19   we currently have.  And it's been a success

 20   because the people who are feeling a little pinch

 21   of it, are here screaming about how they need to

 22   get it waived.  So I would suggest to you that we
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  1   have a pretty good ordinance, as it currently

  2   stands.  It's achieving the purpose for what it

  3   was meant to do.

  4             Now secondly, the revised ordinance that

  5   you all are proposing has vague or non-existent

  6   standards for waivers.  It transfers most of the

  7   authority from the Planning Commission -- from the

  8   citizens to the mayor and council, to waive

  9   whatever they want to waive.  And it eliminates

 10   the historical due process that we've had in this

 11   city of the Planning Commission review.  Now, Mr.

 12   Moore says, "Where does it say that?"  Well, it

 13   doesn't say that, but it doesn't say you have to

 14   have standards, and it doesn't say you have to

 15   have Planning Commission review of these waivers

 16   in the bill.

 17             So I would suggest to you that what you

 18   have is a very pernicious proposal that is

 19   designed essentially to completely undercut the

 20   purpose of the adequate public facilities

 21   ordinance, and to pretend we have one when we

 22   really won't, if you go ahead with what you have.
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  1   Thank you.  (Applause)

  2             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  Wait a

  3   second, we have a question there for you, sir.

  4             MR. HALL:  Actually, I found the last

  5   bit of what you said a little shocking because one

  6   of the authors of these proposed revisions is one

  7   of the authors of the original APFO, and owns it,

  8   and thinks it's a great piece of legislation.  So

  9   I don't see where you get the idea that he's

 10   trying to undercut something he put into place

 11   several years ago.

 12             MR. VITOL:  Well, I can't speak for Mr.

 13   Hall.  I'll let Mr. Hall speak for himself.  I'm

 14   just telling you from what I see, that that is

 15   what the effect will be and what will happen.

 16             MR. MOORE:  Madam Mayor.

 17             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Okay, you have a

 18   question also?

 19             MR. MOORE:  I do.  You half addressed

 20   this, but you mentioned that the due process will

 21   be stripped away, and Planning Commission review

 22   would be stripped away.  I really concerned about
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  1   these allegations, because as far as I can tell,

  2   nothing that we have in here comes anywhere close

  3   to that.

  4             MR. VITOL:  Does it say the Planning

  5   Commission must review this before the mayor and

  6   council?

  7             MR. MOORE:  It doesn't change anything

  8   along those lines.  So where is it that you see

  9   that there would be changes?  I mean it has to be

 10   in the text if we're going to change it.  You

 11   can't just (inaudible) the attitude of the

 12   document.  Where in the text do you see those

 13   changes?

 14             MR. VITOL:  Does the text require the

 15   Planning Commission review of waivers before you

 16   can consider it?

 17             MR. MOORE:  There's no change to who

 18   considers which way --

 19             MR. VITOL:  Just a simple yes or no as

 20   you pointed to other members up here.  Does it

 21   require the Planning Commission to review it

 22   before you take it up?
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  1             MR. MOORE:  With no change.

  2             MR. VITOL:  No change.  So it doesn't is

  3   what you're saying?

  4             MR. MOORE:  It doesn't now.

  5             MR. VITOL:  It doesn't now.

  6             MR. MOORE:  There are waivers now, and

  7   we have not changed --

  8             MR. VITOL:  But there are standards now,

  9   and the standards are very vague or non-existent

 10   in the future.

 11             MR. MOORE:  The standards are the same

 12   as they -- It's interesting, you know, there's

 13   been concern that we don't have a lot of standards

 14   for waivers.  There's been a waiver provision in

 15   this since day one.  And there have been no

 16   standards since day one.  This is our opportunity

 17   here that maybe we should add some standards,

 18   which we are definitely hearing.  And I think

 19   that's absolutely something we're going to

 20   consider.  But this idea that somehow we're

 21   bypassing the citizens and bypassing the Planning

 22   Commission -- that concerns me because if it's in
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  1   here, I want to know about it.  I mean, show me

  2   the text where it is if you can, and let us know

  3   because we absolutely don't want to do that.

  4             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  You have a question,

  5   sir?

  6             MR. MOORE:  So could you please do that?

  7             SPEAKER:  Well, as I said, it isn't in

  8   the ordinance now.  If it wasn't in the past, it

  9   should certainly be in there now.  And, you know,

 10   someone said they don't particularly trust the

 11   mayor and council or other body to provide what

 12   they will do in the future on this.  Maybe not

 13   you, but ten years from now, we need clear

 14   standards.  If they're not in there, then put

 15   clear standards in there so that people know what

 16   they can build, what they can't build, what the

 17   citizens know, what can be built next to them, and

 18   what can't be built next to them.

 19             So this ordinance is fatally flawed, as

 20   it presently stands.  (Applause)

 21             MR. MOORE:  You know what?  I agree it's

 22   fatally flawed.  That's why we're trying to fix
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  1   it.  Thank you.

  2             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  Next on

  3   the list of speakers here is Christina Ginsburg,

  4   and she's to be followed by Les Francis.

  5             MS. GINSBURG:  Thank you, Madam Mayor.

  6   My name is Christina Ginsburg.  I live at --

  7             SPEAKER:  Can't hear you.

  8             MS. GINSBURG:  Well, is this better?

  9             SPEAKER:  No.

 10             MS. GINSBURG:  Is the microphone not

 11   working?

 12             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Stand a little closer

 13   to it if you can.

 14             MS. GINSBURG:  My name is Christina

 15   Ginsburg.  I live at 1204 Simmons Drive, and I'm

 16   the president of the Twinbrook Citizen's

 17   Association.  I'll be speaking as the president,

 18   so that's five minutes please.

 19             Along with the other citizen's

 20   associations you've heard from tonight -- King

 21   Farm, West End, East Rockville, our executive

 22   committee voted unanimously not to support either
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  1   one of the proposed zoning text amendments that

  2   are up tonight.  To our mind, they're

  3   interchangeable.  They provide a way for waivers

  4   to take the place of defined regulations.

  5             Now, I have a real long baseline with

  6   this whole mess, and it's really interesting that

  7   every two years we have to come in here and fight

  8   this all over again.  When the zoning text

  9   amendment was proposed in 2005, which was the last

 10   thing that Mr. Hall voted on before he took his

 11   hiatus from public office for a couple years, the

 12   point of it was that it was self evident that

 13   there was going to be change coming to Rockville,

 14   and that Mayor Giammo especially wanted some way

 15   to reign this in.  And I especially remember you,

 16   Mr. Hall, talking to Pat, the attorney for Holland

 17   and Knight and JBG, when she came up and was

 18   talking about JBG's project at Twinbrook Metro,

 19   and she was saying this would be a great boon to

 20   our tax base.  And, Mr. Hall, I remember you

 21   saying, "No, it won't because every development

 22   project ends up costing more in tax money than it
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  1   generates."  I don't think anything's changed

  2   since that.

  3             This morning some of us were at JBG's

  4   groundbreaking for their third iteration of

  5   buildings on the Twinbrook metro site.  Now the

  6   part that I find -- and I kind of think of this as

  7   the JBG amendment because JBG got their

  8   development approved before the APFO.  They did

  9   not undergo APFO review, and they sucked up all

 10   the school capacity in Twinbrook.

 11             Now, you're talking about adequate

 12   public facilities.  We don't have adequate pubic

 13   facilities right now in Twinbrook.  I have a

 14   school, Meadow Hall, that is 150 students over

 15   capacity.  The children are being taught one-

 16   on-one in converted closets because they don't

 17   have space in that school.

 18             Twinbrook Elementary didn't have an ADA

 19   compliant bathroom for years and years.  Both of

 20   those schools are scheduled for getting

 21   renovations, but they are so far in the future

 22   that they're irrelevant to us.  Now, with JBG's
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  1   capacity that they have been assigned, we are

  2   going to be over capacity in both -- we're over

  3   capacity in one.  We're going to be over capacity

  4   in the other as soon as JBG comes online.

  5             The whole arc of everything that's gone

  6   on for years and years and years, is to say to

  7   citizens, "Oh, we're going to rezone, and it won't

  8   really matter because the APFO will hold back the

  9   actual building until there's public facilities."

 10   We sat in Rorsort.  I have similar tales to what

 11   other commissioners and committee people have told

 12   you.  We have sat in meetings over and over again

 13   and been told, "Oh, you don't have to worry your

 14   head about this.  We'll just zone it for what we

 15   think it can be in 25 years, and it won't happen

 16   because the APFO will hold it back."

 17             We've already seen in Twinbrook what the

 18   results of waivers are.  The results of waivers

 19   are that a building on the Fuddrucker's site can

 20   get built without having adequate parking in it,

 21   without following the parking regulations.  They

 22   were given a waiver that's worth multi- millions
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  1   of dollars to them not to have to build the

  2   parking.  We've seen what happens when there is a

  3   border commission that does not do its work

  4   properly.  We have the building on the Rockville

  5   Pike side of the metro that's a JBG building that

  6   was approved by the Planning Commission by

  7   accident.  They sat there after they had voted and

  8   talked about how they would have another public

  9   meeting, but they didn't know that they had

 10   already voted to approve the building.

 11             Both of those things were never

 12   addressed even though we asked for some kind of

 13   explanation.  So, what I remember from Rorsort is

 14   asking at that time that there be a study done of

 15   the capacity of Rockville Pike -- not the

 16   imaginary capacity, the real capacity, and parcel

 17   out that capacity among all the commercial

 18   properties on the pike.  And I believe that would

 19   have limited the heights to about three or four

 20   stories.  That was never done.  What this waiver

 21   will do, is all these capacities that were just

 22   put in willy nilly that we were promised would not
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  1   happen until there was adequate public facilities,

  2   they will go forward without any real analysis to

  3   show that they are even viable.  And that's

  4   something that really -- the citizens of Rockville

  5   cannot be subjected to that.  We can't carry that

  6   kind of burden on the backs of the taxpayers here.

  7   We don't think that this kind of development

  8   without real thought is good for our community.

  9   Thank you.  (Applause)

 10             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  You have a question,

 11   Christina.

 12             MR. HALL:  Thank you, Madam Mayor.

 13   Twinbrook's a very interesting situation because

 14   there are some pretty big buildings that have been

 15   allowed by our zoning ordinance and have come

 16   within the APFO because those buildings are in the

 17   Walter Johnson cluster.  So it just kind of

 18   strikes me that, you know, Twinbrook has actually

 19   borne the brunt of a lot of residential

 20   development because the APFO has shifted potential

 21   apartment buildings in other parts of the city to

 22   the one metro station that has -- because of a
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  1   decision by the Board of Education that had

  2   nothing to do with Rockville goals.  But the

  3   decision of the Board of Education where to put

  4   the school boundaries allows that little sliver

  5   right by the metro to take all those apartments.

  6   And so it just seems like Twinbrook is being

  7   impacted because of something done outside the

  8   city.

  9             MS. GINSBURG:  Well, when the JBG

 10   building was put up, one of the things that was

 11   put up before the Planning Commission, one of the

 12   things that we were concerned about is that nobody

 13   outside the City of Rockville was ever going to be

 14   notified that this building was being built.

 15   Actually it was the Fuddrucker's building, and we

 16   talked to the developers at that point, and what

 17   they said to us was, "Well, we don't have to

 18   notify anybody outside of the City of Rockville."

 19   So nobody in the Walter Johnson cluster -- where

 20   those kids were going to be bused to -- let me

 21   make that clear for people who are watching this.

 22   There will be a building built next to the
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  1   Twinbrook Metro.  Those children will be loaded

  2   onto buses and bused to Farmland.  Nobody in that

  3   Farmland area was ever told that those kids are

  4   coming.  And that would be an amendment to the

  5   zoning code that we think is very necessary to say

  6   that notice has to go, not only to the people

  7   within the geographic distance around the

  8   development itself, but a geographic distance

  9   around where those children are going to go.

 10             And that kind of amendment serves the

 11   community.  This kind of amendment doesn't, in my

 12   opinion.  Thank you.

 13                  (Applause)

 14             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  All right,

 15   the next is Les Francis, to be followed by Judy

 16   Miller.  Is Les still here?  Les Francis?  Okay,

 17   Judy it's yours.

 18             MS. MILLER:  Following Christina, it

 19   seems appropriate.  I'm Judy Miller.  All of this

 20   brought back memories of being on the Twinbrook

 21   neighborhood planning committee.  While

 22   conservation districts somehow remained in the



9/30/13 Mayor & Council Meeting Agenda Item No. 10 Page: 128

Anderson Court Reporting -- 703-519-7180 -- www.andersonreporting.net

  1   plan, the proposal to disregard the APFO

  2   protections was met with disbelief when it was put

  3   in there, and it was removed.  Now, once again we

  4   are walking into fantasy land where we all -- if

  5   you have a metro near you, you can pretend all is

  6   well.  There is something called magical thinking.

  7   And that certainly is -- this is in the land of

  8   make believe.  A fairytale where all the traffic

  9   vanishes, the schools are uncrowded, basic

 10   services are taken care of -- not in the real

 11   world.

 12             Just because you have an overcrowded

 13   train chugging into your neighborhood, doesn't

 14   mean you can build whatever you want.  In fact,

 15   bringing extra people in, no matter what, means

 16   you will have more cars.  You will need more

 17   schools and parks.  The train is beyond capacity

 18   right now.  Adding a couple of cars to it might

 19   help a little with the same amount of people we

 20   have now, but if you add more people, you defeat

 21   the whole purpose.

 22             Twinbrook has taken more than its fair
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  1   share of development.  Seeing my house in the

  2   middle of that circle was alarming.  I just went

  3   to a groundbreaking this morning, and we have

  4   around 4,000 apartments coming to our neighborhood

  5   around us.  We're urbanized more than enough

  6   already.

  7             Now this morning I heard -- this was a

  8   county executive -- about all this wonderful

  9   density in China.  Then I heard about how great

 10   the density was at our metro.  Now, smart growth

 11   is not smart growth, unless it is spread around.

 12   Other counties are asking for this growth.  Let's

 13   spread some of this development around so this

 14   fairy tale doesn't become a bad dream here in

 15   Rockville.  Thank you.

 16                  (Applause)

 17             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Now, I think we have

 18   exhausted the end of the list of people who have

 19   signed up.  If I haven't called on someone, it's

 20   because I haven't got them in the right place,

 21   right this minute.  So, using what I have, is

 22   there anyone in the group that would like to
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  1   address this public hearing that has not had a

  2   chance?  Please, Alice.

  3             MS. VONSANT:  Alice Vonsant, I live at

  4   13 Clemson Court in College Gardens.  I just

  5   wanted to say a word about the committee that

  6   drafted our original APFO, APFS.  I think they did

  7   a wonderful job, and they had a lot of foresight.

  8   And I think it pretty much answers all of our

  9   questions.  And not that I'm critical.  John, I

 10   know you were on that committee.  I think that it

 11   pretty much answers the questions that we all

 12   have.  And to start tearing it apart and

 13   categorizing new problems, I think is weakening

 14   the original APFO, and I just wanted to commend

 15   the original committee.  They spent eight months

 16   and went over it very well.  And we were apprised

 17   of its contents quite a lot before it was voted

 18   on.  I remember that.

 19             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.  Who else?

 20   Brigetta?

 21             MS. MULLIGAN:  Brigetta Mulligan, 1947

 22   Lewis Avenue, Twinbrook resident since 1965.  I
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  1   want to take a little different approach here, not

  2   necessarily taking sides.  It's very obvious that

  3   -- it's no surprise that most citizens in

  4   Rockville are against development, and we know

  5   why.  Because we have traffic, and most of the

  6   citizens you hear about, it's a school issue.

  7             Now what I've learned since 1998, when I

  8   was on the Planning Commission, I really learned a

  9   lot, and the APFO was an issue then.  And what I

 10   know is, the two issues of the APFO is the schools

 11   and the traffic.  And I always said traffic is

 12   regional, something that the city can't control.

 13   We can only control our streets, you know, that

 14   aren't regional.

 15             Now, with the school issue, it's

 16   definitely always been a Montgomery County public

 17   school problem.  And the City of Rockville has

 18   always wanted a stronger APFO, compared to the

 19   county.  And I always thought that was wrong.  I

 20   think we should be more compatible.  I remember

 21   saying we need to have more discussions.  Actually

 22   through the years I felt that we were alienating
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  1   the county, and the county just never came

  2   through.

  3             I want to also say that I think that we

  4   have a quality of life in Rockville.  And when the

  5   Charrette was done for the Twinbrook development,

  6   people said they liked living here.  They liked

  7   the shopping.  They liked the metro.  They liked

  8   the schools, and they liked the fact that there

  9   were jobs.  So we do have quality.  The real issue

 10   of this APFO, it has never addressed the two

 11   issues the city cannot control.

 12             Now, I don't know what the review

 13   committee recommended.  If nothing was addressed

 14   that they came up with, that's a serious problem.

 15   I also find this whole issue tonight is a little

 16   bit political.  I got that flyer in the mail.  It

 17   just upset me so much.  I can just tell you all

 18   the things that were wrong.  People have the wrong

 19   impression.  They don't have enough information.

 20   Just like my neighbor, Ed, sat next to me.  He

 21   doesn't know the developers have to pay a

 22   medication tax for every student that they
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  1   generate.  There is so much information.  The

  2   developers are doing what our laws say to do.

  3   They're only following the procedures.  If the

  4   procedures are wrong and they don't fit and

  5   they're not right, we need to make them right.

  6   And we cannot be so different from the county.  As

  7   has been said, there's an economic issue.  There's

  8   a tax- base issue.

  9             Anyway, I just want to summarize in

 10   saying that there needs to be a balance.  And the

 11   lady that said be patient and have balance, this

 12   is what needs to be done.  Again, I don't want to

 13   say for or against.  I think you just throw it all

 14   out.  It just has never been addressed properly.

 15   You need to start all over.  Take those

 16   recommendations, listen to what was said here, and

 17   don't push it before the election.  Thank you very

 18   much.

 19             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right.  Is there

 20   anyone else who would like to address the mayor

 21   and council?  Yes, ma'am, at this public hearing

 22   on the APFO.
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  1             MS. PRINCE:  Good evening.

  2             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Good evening.

  3             MS. PRINCE:  My name is Susan Prince,

  4   and I reside at 206 Evans Street.  I'm going to be

  5   speaking on behalf of WECA, so if I could have

  6   five minutes?  Thank you.

  7             I'm on the executive board of the West

  8   End Citizen's Association and have been directed

  9   by our president, Noreen Bryan, to provide

 10   testimony regarding the proposed edits to the APFS

 11   on behalf of the organization.  This testimony has

 12   been approved by the WECA executive board.

 13             At our September 19th meeting, we

 14   unanimously voted to approve the following, and I

 15   quote, "The WECA executive board unanimously voted

 16   in opposition to the waiver of the adequate public

 17   facility standards proposed by councilmembers Hall

 18   and Moore, which would allow approval of new

 19   developments in Town Center and near metro

 20   stations, without regard to the impact on schools

 21   and traffic.

 22             By way of background, APFO and APFS,
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  1   which were enacted in 2005, established procedures

  2   and standards necessary to ensure that adequate

  3   public facilities and services are provided to

  4   support any new development or redevelopment.

  5             Specific areas of concern are school

  6   capacity, transportation capacity, fire and

  7   emergency services, and water and sewer capacity.

  8   The current ordinance does allow for a waiver of

  9   the classroom space requirement, but only for

 10   certain specific developments, including nursing

 11   homes and senior housing, developments which do

 12   not generate students and the accompanying need

 13   for classroom space.  Those are excluded.

 14             On September 9th, a proposal for major

 15   revisions to the APFS was introduced to the mayor

 16   and council.  This proposal recommended a series

 17   of changes, the most devastating of which is a

 18   modification to the waiver provision.  The

 19   Moore/Hall proposal would allow additional waivers

 20   for virtually any development, as long as it was

 21   within 2,000 feet, which is nearly four tenths of

 22   a mile, of a metro station or in the Town Center
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  1   performance district.

  2             WECA is opposed to this change to the

  3   APFS.  Our decisions leading up to our vote

  4   focused on the following points.  First, what

  5   affect will the waiver have on future development?

  6   The area outlined in the proposal, not only

  7   includes where large developments are expected to

  8   be built, but also reaches well into what are

  9   single-family neighborhoods today.

 10             Their plan would also ignore any impact

 11   of newly generated traffic, as is currently

 12   required.  The criteria for the waiver are vague,

 13   and there is no definition of a transit-oriented

 14   area use.  How will this be interpreted by future

 15   commissioners and members of the mayor and

 16   council?  Are they to decide that the project is

 17   somehow good for the city, with the assessment of

 18   the merits of a project left largely to the

 19   subjective taste of the deciding body?

 20             You may be wondering why we have only

 21   focused on this one aspect to the proposed

 22   changes, which leads to the second point of our
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  1   discussion.  At our meeting we focused on the

  2   scope of the proposed changes and the timetable

  3   for discussion and review.  After substantial

  4   review by a citizen and developer committee, and

  5   the Planning Commission, neither of which

  6   recommended major changes to the APFO, APFS, why

  7   the huge rush to make changes now?  The timetable

  8   proposed by councilmembers Hall and Moore would

  9   fast-track any further consideration of the new

 10   proposal so that there would be no further

 11   involvement of the Planning Commission and limited

 12   opportunity for citizen input.

 13             There was resistance to the idea of a

 14   public hearing at the mayor and council meeting.

 15   Councilwoman Newton and Mayor Marcuccio were

 16   successful in building a public hearing into the

 17   process.  That's why we're here tonight.

 18   (Applause)

 19             MR. HALL:  This is outrageous.  This is

 20   an outrageous -- that's not true.  I'm sorry.

 21   That's not true.

 22             MR. MOORE:  Try again.
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  1             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Okay.

  2             MS. PRINCE:  May I continue?

  3             MR. HALL:  Yes.

  4             MS. PRINCE:  Thank you.  The proposed

  5   timetable requires the mayor and council to vote

  6   on the Moore/Hall proposal by the end of October.

  7   I would encourage everyone to review the proposed

  8   document online.  It's a 15 page document that's

  9   heavily redlined.

 10             Remember, this document was first

 11   presented just prior to the mayor and council

 12   meeting on September 9th, and is scheduled to be

 13   voted on before the November election.  As you are

 14   undoubtedly aware by now, WECA is an all-

 15   volunteer organization that relies on the

 16   oftentimes heroic efforts of the members to stay

 17   abreast of developments within the city that

 18   affect our neighborhoods specifically and the city

 19   in general.  We do not meet during the summer

 20   months, as many people are away.  And yet every

 21   year, proposals such as this appear on the agenda,

 22   usually with an accelerated schedule for review,
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  1   discussion, and approval.  With this proposal,

  2   it's déjà vu all over again.

  3             Rather than allow for a full and open

  4   discussion on this vitally important topic, there

  5   has been much e-mail traffic back and forth on the

  6   merits or otherwise of this proposal.  Why not

  7   allow this discussion to happen out in the open?

  8             In summary, the officers of WECA have

  9   discussed the Moore/Hall proposal, and we believe

 10   that the changes recommended would essentially gut

 11   the APFO by allowing new developments of any sort

 12   without any consideration of the impact on our

 13   seriously overcrowded schools or of the potential

 14   impact of consequently new generated traffic.  It

 15   is for this reason, we voted unanimously to oppose

 16   the proposed changes.  Thank you.

 17             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  I think we have a

 18   question for you.  Mr. Pierzchala.

 19             MR. PIERZCHALA:  Yes, thank you.  One

 20   thing that really strikes me, and I personally had

 21   no part in the Town Square development, but the

 22   city had, you know -- I don't thing there's ever
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  1   been a full accounting, but my guess is 40 to 50

  2   million dollar investment in the Town Square

  3   directly by the city.  We went through

  4   condemnation and kicked businesses out.  It was

  5   really a big deal to reformulate the Town Square.

  6   And my observation is that the west end is really

  7   behind this, really wanted this to be redone.

  8             So now we have the Town Square, and, you

  9   know, it just occurs to me that one reason that

 10   councilmembers Hall and Moore wanted to have a

 11   waiver provision was for this special situation

 12   where we actually have as a city, invested not

 13   only a lot of money, but a lot of effort and time,

 14   and a lot of citizen input.  And so, therefore,

 15   the waiver would allow us to actually balance the

 16   need to stabilize our town square/town center area

 17   versus, you know, other worthwhile goals.

 18             And so, you know, what is your reaction

 19   to that?  Doesn't the waiver allow us to balance

 20   competing goals?

 21             MS. PRINCE:  So my feeling on that is

 22   this.  If that is truly the intent of this waiver,
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  1   is to create a stronger vision for phase II, then

  2   why doesn't this document say that?  I feel like

  3   that the document is too broad, too open-ended,

  4   and it's not exactly what you're saying.  So

  5   that's the issue I have with it.  I'm not exactly

  6   articulating this very clearly, but my feeling is,

  7   if that's what you want, that's what you should

  8   have said.  That's not what this document says.

  9             SPEAKER:  (off mic)

 10             MS. PRINCE:  Well, if that is truly the

 11   intent, that's not what this document says.  So

 12   the way this is written is not acceptable in any

 13   way, shape, or form.

 14                  (Applause)

 15             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Is there anyone else

 16   who would --

 17             MR. MOORE:  Madam Mayor, I have a

 18   question too.  I'm sorry.

 19             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Don't go away.

 20             MR. MOORE:  Ms. Prince, thank you for

 21   coming in.

 22             MS. PRINCE:  Yes, yes.
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  1             MR. MOORE:  You know, one of the reasons

  2   that we called this meeting -- councilmember Hall

  3   and I called for this hearing back in April,

  4   actually when we first brought up this discussion

  5   that was one of the first things that was -- we

  6   were discussing it back then.  And we pushed hard

  7   to get it scheduled tonight.

  8             One of the things we wanted to do was to

  9   throw this to the community organizations and ask

 10   for help because we know that we don't have it

 11   exactly right.  And we've heard it on conditions

 12   and the scope of the waivers around metro stations

 13   and that kind of thing.  And that's been great

 14   input.

 15             All we got from WECA is that it would be

 16   devastating, and would gut the APFO.  And we were

 17   looking for help from you guys.  And all you said

 18   was, no.  And as a statement fist, I'm a little

 19   disappointed in that.  I do have a question for

 20   you.

 21             MS. PRINCE:  Can I rebut that before you

 22   go on?
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  1             MR. MOORE:  Sure.

  2             MS. PRINCE:  So, I think that's a very

  3   fair statement.  However, you need to understand

  4   that the timing on this -- you may have been

  5   pushing this since April.  However, the document

  6   that we are talking about tonight, did not appear

  7   until the September 9th mayor and council meeting,

  8   September 30th.  So we would love to provide

  9   additional input; however, the timing just does

 10   not permit it, does not allow it.  We had to

 11   scramble.  I mean I had a conversation with

 12   councilmember Hall that, you know, I was so

 13   frustrated that we did not have more time to

 14   properly provide more constructive feedback.  We

 15   would be happy to.  However, you have to give the

 16   citizens a chance, more than three weeks.

 17             MR. MOORE:  That's good, that leads to

 18   my second question.  You were involved with the

 19   west end in 2005?

 20             MS. PRINCE:  I'm sorry.

 21             MR. MOORE:  You were involved with the

 22   west end in 2005?
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  1             MS. PRINCE:  Yes, yes I was.

  2             MR. MOORE:  So my question is, with the

  3   public hearing being October 10th to look at the

  4   entire APFO and this massive change that the APFO

  5   and APFS were going to make to our development and

  6   future in this city, was that enough time?

  7             MS. PRINCE:  Well, if it was a bad idea

  8   then, it certainly doesn't make it a good idea

  9   now.  Thank you.

 10             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Is there anyone else?

 11             MS. ROSENBURG:  I'm not going to make a

 12   statement because we've all been sitting --

 13             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  You'll have to come to

 14   the microphone because we --

 15             MS. ROSENBURG:  I am Jean Rosenburg,

 16   resident of Rockville, 1101 Prospect Hill Place.

 17   I have like a simple question.  This is my first

 18   public citizen forum.  I'm happy to be a resident

 19   of Rockville for the past 15 years.  I lived also

 20   in a small community in Prince George's county,

 21   which believe me, never seemed to have as many

 22   issues as I've heard here tonight.  I have one
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  1   simple question.  Do you not -- when I pay my

  2   taxes, I pay Montgomery County taxes, and I pay

  3   City of Rockville taxes.  Now I've got to believe

  4   that our tax base goes back to the county.  Am I

  5   like some of it?  Like I go shop at some store.

  6   It's the issue around the schools.

  7             It sounds like the federal government.

  8   The Senate can't talk to the Congress.  Congress

  9   can't talk to the Senate.  Can you not guys, talk

 10   to Montgomery County about the school system?  I

 11   don't know about you.  I don't even have kids, and

 12   I am appalled by the idea --

 13             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  I can tell you -- I

 14   have personally visited with the school system.

 15             MS. ROSENBURG:  -- of our children -- we

 16   needed to make a -- this is disgusting.  This is

 17   supposed to be the number one county in the state

 18   or some kind of crazy like this, and we have kids

 19   in closets being taught?  I'm sorry.

 20             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Frustrating, it's

 21   frustrating.  It is frustrating.

 22             MS. ROSENBURG:  I mean it just seems
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  1   like we're talking about more money and more

  2   money.  For what purpose, if we're not going to

  3   educate our children in a proper manner?  That's

  4   it.  (Applause)

  5             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Mr. Hadley.

  6             MS. ROSENBURG:  I'm sorry.  Education

  7   makes me very emotional.

  8             MR. HADLEY:  Thank you, Don Hadley.  We

  9   live at 215 Harrison Street in our fair city.  I

 10   guess I'm the last and maybe the least.

 11             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Maybe.

 12             MR. HADLEY:  Hamming it up a little bit.

 13             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  We're getting tired.

 14             MR. HADLEY:  I just wanted to add a

 15   sense of process here.  It's easy in highly

 16   contentious situations, which this is, for loss of

 17   respect.  I'm firmly not in favor of the two

 18   amendments, but that's not with the least bit of

 19   disrespect for the proponents of the councilmen or

 20   of the developers.  It's a question of our finding

 21   the leadership and the depth to really have the

 22   deep kind of discussion, that we're just now in
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  1   this hearing beginning to say, we know we don't

  2   have it right.  How do we get it right?  And how

  3   do we have leadership and the cooperation to do

  4   that?  Even if we perceive that we're not going to

  5   agree on all points or any points.

  6             The fact that it's a three-week process

  7   as to these two particular forms of legislation,

  8   we'll all agree that's a very short period of

  9   time.  And really without reference to what

 10   happened in 2005, the citizens have a lot to say.

 11   I actually was thinking that people don't

 12   understand this.  And maybe they don't fully

 13   understand it, but actually I think we've been

 14   blessed to have evidence of a fair amount of

 15   understanding.

 16             This really needs to take a lot more

 17   time, and I know we didn't come to the Planning

 18   Commission.  I'm speaking individually, not as a

 19   Planning Commissioner.  But the fact that it's a

 20   regulation and not an ordinance, in this case

 21   isn't a good reason for not sending it through an

 22   ordinance-like proceeding because it's a major
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  1   change of the way an ordinance is applied.

  2             So I think if it had come to the

  3   Planning Commission, and if we'd have had a

  4   hearing stage there, and had an opportunity for

  5   what's happening tonight, to happen before it came

  6   to you, then you would have had a much deeper set

  7   of understanding.  The citizens and their

  8   year-long study, didn't see fit to recommend

  9   changes.  That wasn't an accident.  They did a

 10   deep study.  We have a development set of

 11   interests.  We have a business set of interests.

 12   I think the business and developers shouldn't be

 13   lumped in the same bucket.  And we have citizens,

 14   and they shouldn't all be lumped in the same

 15   bucket.  And I'm not quite overtime.  Good, I

 16   thought I was.

 17             So I would say, start over again, and we

 18   shouldn't be fighting, you know, like hens in a

 19   burning henhouse.  And if we want to benefit --

 20   I'm going to stop quickly -- but if we want to

 21   benefit Town Center II development, or if we want

 22   to benefit Twinbrook development, the exact
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  1   purpose of that needs to be stated, and the exact

  2   principles to guide that need to be stated.  The

  3   fact that we're going to either generalized areas

  4   or looking at a super majority as a protection --

  5   I mean Abraham Lincoln said, "You can fool all the

  6   people some of the time."  So a super majority

  7   doesn't really do it.  And the fact that if this

  8   is approved, this legislation that's before you

  9   isn't going to be approved by a super majority;

 10   it's going to be approved by a majority.  So

 11   you're going to have a majority deciding to ground

 12   rules that we think are so important that a super

 13   majority should really govern.  So we just need

 14   more depth.  I'm sorry I'm over.  Thank you.

 15   (Applause)

 16             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you very much.

 17   Is there anyone else who --

 18             MR. MOORE:  Mr. Hadley.

 19             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Mr. Hadley, I believe

 20   Mr. Moore wishes to ask you a question.

 21             MR. HADLEY:  I'm shocked.  (Laughter)

 22             MR. MOORE:  I think the exchange of
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  1   ideas has been very good tonight.  I understand

  2   you're not, again -- half of the Planning

  3   Commission is showing up to testify as individuals

  4   tonight and not as Planning Commissioners.  But

  5   you are chairman of the Planning Commission.  And

  6   early in this term we brought this up.

  7   Councilmember Hall had a passel of changes that he

  8   suggested.  Councilmember Pierzchala suggested

  9   that we toss it to the Planning Commission, and

 10   you guys had it for the better part of a year.

 11             MR. HADLEY:  We did.

 12             MR. MOORE:  And you studied every bit of

 13   the standards that we've got here --

 14             MR. HADLEY:  Right.

 15             MR. MOORE:  -- the ordinance itself,

 16   really taking a good, hard look at it.

 17             MR. HADLEY:  Right.

 18             MR. MOORE:  And you made a series of

 19   recommendations --

 20             MR. HADLEY:  Yep.

 21             MR. MOORE:  -- that councilmember Hall

 22   and I checked very carefully, didn't go with
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  1   everything because that's not our job to just

  2   rubber stamp you.  And then when we put out our

  3   proposal here, we tossed it back to you and said,

  4   "How can you help us?  Give us some constructive

  5   improvements here."  And we didn't get anything

  6   like that from the Planning Commission.

  7             MR. HADLEY:  It didn't come back to the

  8   Planning Commission.  They refused to send it to

  9   us.

 10             MR. MOORE:  You had a meeting, and you

 11   --

 12             MR. HADLEY:  You didn't ask.  You didn't

 13   send it to us.

 14             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  No, sir.  They have

 15   not been (inaudible)

 16             MR. MOORE:  No, no, no.  We did not send

 17   it to you, but --

 18             MR. HADLEY:  That's the difference.  You

 19   didn't send it to us.

 20             MR. MOORE:  Excuse me.  You met on it

 21   for quite some time.

 22             MR. HADLEY:  Yeah, and we told you only
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  1   general comments.  We did not specifically take it

  2   up because we weren't asked to, and we weren't

  3   going to advance the cause beyond saying we don't

  4   think this is the way to start.  And we weren't

  5   going to help a situation that we didn't think was

  6   the way to start.  Period.

  7             MR. MOORE:  Well, we would have

  8   appreciated your help.

  9             MR. HADLEY:  Well then you should have

 10   asked for it.  I'm sorry.  That was a bad tone on

 11   my part.  I'm sorry, but I mean, we were taken

 12   aback, but --

 13             MR. PIERZCHALA:  It's just very odd

 14   because you did have it.  You had Mr. Hall's

 15   originals.  You know, he came up with a great big

 16   PowerPoint.  He had quite a few changes, and I

 17   asked for it to go to the Planning Commission, and

 18   that's what was sent to you.

 19             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Oh, Mr. Pierzchala.

 20             MR. HADLEY:  We didn't get anything like

 21   that.

 22             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  How can you say that?
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  1   Oh my goodness.

  2             MR. PIERZCHALA:  Excuse me, Madam Mayor.

  3   That's what happened.

  4             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Oh no, it is not what

  5   happened.

  6             MR. HADLEY:  You keep confusing what

  7   happened before these amendments came to us.

  8   We're talking these amendments, not the general

  9   rattle that was going on for ten months or a year

 10   or whatever before.

 11             MR. PIERZCHALA:  Mr. Hall had some very

 12   -- excuse me.  Mr. Hall had some very specific

 13   suggestions, some of which have now come through

 14   the (inaudible)

 15             MR. HADLEY:  You can't link back -- I

 16   mean you didn't send them to us.

 17             MR. PIERZCHALA:  You had a year to look

 18   at them.

 19             MR. HADLEY:  We did, and we said we

 20   don't want you to change anything.

 21             MR. PIERZCHALA:  Okay, but we did go

 22   through the process.
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  1             MR. HADLEY:  No, you didn't.

  2             MR. PIERZCHALA:  We did go through a

  3   (inaudible) process.

  4             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Just a moment here.  I

  5   would like to remind everyone, this is a public

  6   hearing.  This is not an argument.

  7             MR. HADLEY:  Mark, you didn't send it.

  8   I'm sorry, Mayor.

  9             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  I wish very much that

 10   we would end this kind of discussion.  If there's

 11   anyone else who wants to address the group as far

 12   as the public hearing is concerned, we'll hear

 13   from them.  And I hope you two will hold your

 14   questions because they've turned into commentary

 15   instead of questions.  Please.

 16             MR. LEIDERMAN:  Good evening, Madam

 17   Mayor, and councilmembers.  I'm Jack Leiderman,

 18   100 North Street.  I'm on the Planning Commission,

 19   but I'm speaking tonight as a private citizen.

 20   But I will speak to that last point which was the

 21   waiver thing was never before -- well, that's the

 22   whole enchilada, Mr. Pierzchala.
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  1             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Please, sir.  Do you

  2   mind?

  3             MR. LEIDERMAN:  I am here to support my

  4   fellow citizens who have turned out on short

  5   notice to testify against the two proposals on the

  6   table.  But I will refer to the fact, as you

  7   noted, that the Planning Commission voted

  8   unanimously seven to nothing to recommend against

  9   these proposals.  And you may want to read the

 10   letter from the Planning Commission just so you --

 11   if you didn't get to see the proceedings, the part

 12   that says that the proposal lacks consistency with

 13   existing plans, plan with a capital P, came from

 14   Commissioner Tyner's observation that the

 15   proposals are inconsistent with the Twinbrook

 16   neighborhood plan, which is part of the city's

 17   master plan.  Which is another reason why Planning

 18   Commissioners tend to recommend vetting some of

 19   these regulatory changes to see if they're

 20   consistent with the master plan, rather than just

 21   adopting them.  And then being in, you know, the

 22   familiar position of leaving the next mayor and
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  1   council to clean up your messes.

  2             When the APFO was enacted, it was a

  3   contract between the city and its residents -- a

  4   promise that the city government would not

  5   intentionally overcrowd its own schools and roads.

  6   There may be overcrowding from circumstances

  7   beyond the city's control, but the city would not

  8   promise that it would not intentionally contribute

  9   to the problem by allowing new developments that

 10   would add to the problem.

 11             The two proposals being considered

 12   tonight overturns that contract, that promise,

 13   which the city made to its residents when it

 14   adopted the APFO.  You have this language cleanup

 15   which is fine, but inside it is this Trojan horse

 16   that you cannot disguise as a minor change.  It's

 17   a major change.

 18             Contrary, Mr. Moore, to your assertion

 19   that there are no standards in the current

 20   waivers, the standard for granting waivers now is

 21   that there is little or no impact, so that we can

 22   grant -- you know, as the Planning Commission and
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  1   Board of  Appeals grants these waivers precisely

  2   because there's little or no impact.  A cell phone

  3   tower doesn't add kids to the schools or a nursing

  4   home.  And it specifically stated that those, you

  5   know, the covered class of waivers specifically

  6   for things that have little or no impact.

  7             These proposals are a major change -- a

  8   major change in land-use policy for the city, by

  9   granting waivers to school and traffic standards

 10   for projects that would have a significant

 11   overcrowding impact on the schools or roads.  If

 12   the schools and roads weren't already at capacity

 13   or over capacity you wouldn't need a waiver.  This

 14   is directly counter to the purpose of the APFO,

 15   and it's a violation of the promise that the city

 16   made to its residents.  It's the wrong thing for

 17   you to do to your constituents.

 18             The people of Rockville count on you to

 19   protect and enhance our quality of life.  You can

 20   claim that this weakening of the APFO is somehow

 21   an improvement, but we know politicians' spin when

 22   we see it.  This waiver expansion is a significant
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  1   weakening of the APFO, and represents a serious

  2   breach of the contract the city has with its own

  3   citizens.

  4             If you choose to vote for these

  5   proposals, don't be surprised when you hear back

  6   from the citizens that they feel you've betrayed

  7   them because they'll be correct.  Thank you.

  8   (Applause)

  9             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Do you have a

 10   question, sir?

 11             MR. PIERZCHALA:  Thank you, Mr.

 12   Leiderman.  I grant you absolutely that the waiver

 13   proposal by my two colleagues was not part of what

 14   originally came to the Planning Commission.  I

 15   grant you that.  However, some of what is in their

 16   proposal is certainly part of what the Planning

 17   Commission had before them to review.  Could you

 18   see, for example, stripping out for the time being

 19   these more drastic and recent changes?  There are

 20   some clarifications, other things that would be

 21   very useful.  For example, the ability to build a

 22   school without impeding, you know, on APFO
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  1   standards and process.

  2             MR. LEIDERMAN:  There are many things in

  3   here that sort of clean up past errors and, you

  4   know, Mr. Hall knows, you all know that those kind

  5   of things are not what is objectionable in here.

  6             The poison pill in here is the expansion

  7   of waivers, and I have suggested to Mr. Hall that

  8   these elements be separated and considered

  9   separately.  You know, that the little apostrophes

 10   and TOA that you're putting in or taking our or

 11   some of the minor things that we've had to do,

 12   whatever.  You know, you've got that and you can

 13   say, oh, this is wonderful and maybe it is.  A lot

 14   of people haven't even had a chance to look at

 15   that level of detail because you've got this

 16   waiver expansion in here that is absolutely

 17   unacceptable.  Citizen association after citizen

 18   association is voting unanimously against it.  The

 19   Planning Commission voted unanimously against it.

 20   There's a difference here.  And to try to sell

 21   that piece by saying, "Oh, but we're fixing this

 22   thing that got messed up when you guys screwed up
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  1   Silverwood."  Fine, fix that stuff.  Vote on the

  2   things that there's consensus for.  This other

  3   thing that has the potential to overcrowd our

  4   schools and our roads, violate the master plan, et

  5   cetera that you're going to rush through.  With

  6   all due respect, at the end of your term, Mr.

  7   Hall, I understand, you know, that you want to see

  8   this happen, but we don't want it rushed through

  9   and jammed down our throats.  Thank you, sir.

 10   (Applause)

 11             MR. MOORE:  I have a question.

 12             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right, is there

 13   anyone --

 14             MR. LEIDERMAN:  Question, thank you Mr.

 15   Moore.

 16             MR. MOORE:  Again, thank you for coming

 17   in.  This is on topic but not directly related to

 18   your testimony.  I've been kind of dying to know

 19   all week -- did you have anything to do with the

 20   postcard that was sent out?

 21             MR. LEIDERMAN:  The postcard that was

 22   sent out?
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  1             MR. MOORE:  Yeah.

  2             MR. LEIDERMAN:  I was in Florida over

  3   the weekend.  I got back from the airport last

  4   night and read it just like a lot of people did.

  5   I have to admit that I agree with an awful lot of

  6   it in there.

  7             MR. MOORE:  All right, thank you.

  8             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Is there anyone else

  9   who wishes to address, yes.

 10             SPEAKER:  Can I ask if there will be

 11   other agenda items that (inaudible) tonight?

 12             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  We've got to finish

 13   this public hearing first.

 14             SPEAKER:  I'm just wondering.

 15             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Everyone has to have a

 16   chance to speak.

 17             SPEAKER:  If you kept to the three

 18   minutes and one question, we could get through

 19   this --

 20             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Well, I think I tried

 21   to do that at the beginning.  Good luck.

 22             MS. HADDICK:  I'm Megan Haddick.  I live
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  1   in Twinbrook on Halsey.  I guess I feel like since

  2   I made it to the end of this section, sitting in

  3   the front row, I felt like I should stand up and

  4   say something.

  5             I have a ten-month old, and I guess I'm

  6   one of those people that moved to Rockville and is

  7   contributing to overcrowding of the schools, not

  8   through development, but just by moving here.

  9             I came from Baltimore.  I loved being

 10   able to walk to restaurants.  I really enjoyed a

 11   dense, urban environment.  I'm not

 12   anti-development, and I think that I'm willing to

 13   give a lot of people the benefit of the doubt

 14   about why we need more development.  I agree with

 15   a lot of those things.

 16             But I guess, if I could just ask a

 17   question of those of you that proposed the

 18   amendment, Mr. Hall and Mr.  Moore.  For my

 19   ten-month old, specifically, why should I not be

 20   worried about the schools?

 21             MR. MOORE:  Well, for one thing -- and I

 22   have created six times the problem that you have.
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  1   Every one of my six kids is in Montgomery County

  2   public schools, one at Bell, one at Barnsley, two

  3   at Julius West, and two at Richard Montgomery.

  4             Immediately what I would say is, that

  5   after a lot of lobbying for years on behalf of a

  6   lot of neighborhood associations, a lot of

  7   different groups, and the mayor and council,

  8   Montgomery County is going to build a fifth public

  9   elementary school in the Richard Montgomery

 10   cluster.  So that should alleviate the crowding in

 11   all eight elementary schools --

 12             MS. HADDICK:  For Twinbrook, for my kid?

 13             MR. MOORE:  Yeah, they're going to do a

 14   boundary study and basically kind of even

 15   everything out all the way across.  I think

 16   actually all of the schools, once that is built,

 17   will be a little bit under capacity.  Not forever,

 18   but it's a major win for Rockville.  As your child

 19   gets older, Julius West, the middle school where I

 20   have two kids, that's going to undergo a pretty

 21   major expansion of its core capacity.  That's

 22   going to be a major project.  And the high school
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  1   at Richard Montgomery is pretty close to capacity

  2   now, but that's a brand new school.  I mean we are

  3   doing pretty well.  Your child is going to go to

  4   beautiful schools all the way through.

  5             MS. HADDICK:  I just mean with respect

  6   to the waivers with all of the apartments that are

  7   now going up.

  8             MR. MOORE:  Well, the apartments that

  9   are now going up are counted in the counts.

 10             MS. HADDICK:  They're in the counts?

 11             MR. MOORE:  Yeah, nothing can go without

 12   being counted.  So nothing is approved that can be

 13   counted.

 14             MS. HADDICK:  So, why is the waiver

 15   needed?

 16                  (Laughter)

 17             MR. MOORE:  Because we're concerned.

 18   No, that's a good question.  Thank you.  We're

 19   concerned about -- the concern that we were trying

 20   to address when we came up with this was the

 21   direction the Town Center II was going in.  We're

 22   getting sub-quality development there -- stuff
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  1   that we're not going to be -- not nearly as good

  2   as Town Center I, and stuff that we're going to be

  3   living with for an awful long time if we don't do

  4   it right.  So the idea was to allow the Board of

  5   Appeals, the Planning Commission, the mayor and

  6   council to be able to weigh the competing goals of

  7   the city.  And there are competing goals.

  8   Overcrowding schools is definitely an important

  9   goal.  But it's not the only goal that we have.

 10             MS. HADDICK:  But Twinbrook isn't in

 11   Town Center.

 12             MR. MOORE:  No, no, that's --

 13             MS. HADDICK:  So, why the waiver at

 14   Twinbrook specifically?

 15             MR. HALL:  Well, that's something that

 16   we can discuss.  The whole idea of having this

 17   opportunity is recognition of the fact that we

 18   know that we haven't built the perfect wheel.  We

 19   identified some real problems that exist in the

 20   APFS.  They're true problems.  And there doesn't

 21   seem to be a lot of opposition to actually

 22   addressing those two problems.
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  1             We also are concerned, at least in my

  2   particular case, primarily with the development in

  3   Town Center that is inconsistent with the Town

  4   Center master plan.  But there's an opportunity, I

  5   think both in deliberation, and also from hearing

  6   everybody in all the e-mails and other

  7   engagements, to make it better.  And I think we're

  8   committed to doing that.

  9             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right.  Thank you

 10   so very much for your commentary.  Thank you for

 11   your answers and your questions.  Is there anyone

 12   else because I would like to close this public

 13   hearing.  And by golly you'd better get up here

 14   and do it fast because we're getting late.

 15   Please.

 16             MR. BOWMAN:  Hello, my name is Stewart

 17   Bowman.  I've resided in Rockville since 1975.  I

 18   live at 707 West Montgomery Avenue.  Rockville

 19   being our fair city as Click and Clack, the Tappet

 20   Brothers would say.  I just -- kind of a recap of

 21   what a lot of other people have said, but I'm

 22   strongly opposed to any of these propositions that
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  1   turn the APFO into swiss cheese.  It's clearly the

  2   intent of this proposal to (inaudible) in fact as

  3   well as in spirit.

  4             APFO was created to bring some degree of

  5   balance between the pressures for expanded

  6   development and the need for adequate supporting

  7   services in our city.  It's done this with a fair

  8   degree of success.  It's not the Old Testament of

  9   the Bible.  It's not cast in stone.  I'm sure

 10   there can be improvements and details and what

 11   have you, that can be changed.  However, it does

 12   have the benefit of being written with clarity,

 13   with specific rules and guidelines, and some

 14   consistency.

 15             The situation with the waivers -- I'm

 16   kind of going off of what I had written because a

 17   lot of it's been covered already.  But the waiver

 18   proposals pretty much sack the consistency,

 19   obscure the clarity.  As many people have pointed

 20   out, you guys or whomever will make rules that

 21   don't necessarily, you know, make exceptions that

 22   no one knows what comes next.  You have to fight
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  1   each battle individually.  There's not a clear set

  2   of rules to follow.  The changes go far beyond the

  3   waivers allowed in the past, go behind anything

  4   the APFO Advisory Committee recommended, and far

  5   beyond the Planning Commission, which as we know,

  6   already voted seven to zero against this proposal.

  7             These waiver changes are, as we've

  8   heard, inconsistent with the expressed views of

  9   citizen associations in the impacted areas,

 10   including east Rockville and west end

 11   associations.  Passage of these changes would be a

 12   sad day for Rockville, a city which has struggled

 13   for many decades to forge a balance between

 14   development growth and quality of life.

 15             We all sadly remember the 1960's urban

 16   redevelopment, the Rockville Mall.  But I

 17   basically sincerely hope the council will have the

 18   wisdom to maintain that balance by enforcing a

 19   consistent and fair implementation of the APFO.

 20   Thank you for your time.

 21             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  Thank you.

 22             MR. MOORE:  Quick question.
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  1             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  No, I'm not going to

  2   admit the questions because we have one or two

  3   more people.  It is almost 10:30.  You've had

  4   plenty of time to make your points.  Yes, I see

  5   someone in the back there.

  6             MS. CHAO:  My name is Margaret Chao.  I

  7   live at 3 Bracknell Circle in Rockville, and I'm

  8   speaking tonight in my individual capacity, and

  9   not as the president of New Mark Commons Homes

 10   Association.  I, like so many other people here

 11   tonight who have sat here for almost three hours,

 12   am strongly opposed to the APFO waivers.  They've

 13   said it more eloquently than I could ever, so

 14   there's no point in repeating it.

 15             I'm just surprised that we have to come

 16   out here to tell you all to protect our cities,

 17   our neighborhoods, and our services.  It's not our

 18   job. It's your job.  And if you can't do your job,

 19   then hopefully the next mayor and council will.

 20   We should not have to spend hours fighting for

 21   something to keep our schools and roads and sewers

 22   and everything else functioning without
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  1   overcrowding.  And for any of you to sit there and

  2   think these are just technical corrections, minor

  3   little things -- when I got the notice from our

  4   neighborhood resource coordinator about the

  5   hearing, I looked at it, and it was like over 70

  6   pages of attachments.  And that did not even

  7   include the seven staff attachments.

  8             It's ridiculous for you all to think

  9   that people here can sit there and go through it

 10   in two weeks and be well versed in it.  I mean you

 11   all couldn't even send us the right document.  You

 12   know, what's going on?  We need people who can be

 13   protective of the citizens of Rockville, not the

 14   developers.  I'm sorry, that's the way it is.

 15   (Applause)

 16             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right, any more?

 17   Please.

 18             MS. MCMULLIN:  My name is Victoria

 19   McMullin, and I'm vice president of WECA, but I'm

 20   speaking tonight as an individual.  There's been a

 21   lot of e-mails to the council that have been

 22   reported to me.  And what Mr. Moore has done is
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  1   shoot back instantly to everybody question,

  2   question, question, challenging them.  And one of

  3   the questions that has been reported to me most

  4   often is, he says, "Do you mean the waivers that

  5   are already in the APFO?  Do you mean the waivers

  6   to bill schools?"  In an attempt, obviously to try

  7   to confuse people.  So I thought I would speak

  8   about that.  Maybe it can help clarify that.

  9   Maybe he'll stop harassing people who e-mail the

 10   council.

 11             It helps me to think of a waiver to the

 12   APFO as being either an inconsequential waiver or

 13   a consequential waiver.  This newly proposed

 14   waiver is extremely consequential.  Since the

 15   beginning of the APFO, the only waivers allowed

 16   have been for things that have little or no

 17   impact.  And the grounds for granting those

 18   waivers have been precisely because they have

 19   little or no impact.

 20             An example of an inconsequential waiver

 21   would be waiving school standards for nursing

 22   homes or for cell towers.  We know that nursing
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  1   homes and cell towers would not in any way

  2   increase school overcrowding or impact the roads

  3   significantly.

  4             So these waivers that are already in the

  5   APFS, yes, there are some waivers in the APFS.

  6   These waivers are inconsequential, meaning they

  7   have no impact.  So, they're fine.  Those waivers

  8   are just fine.  So if you want positive feedback,

  9   those waivers are fine.  I like them.  You can

 10   leave them there.  But they are separate and

 11   distinct from the waivers we are talking about

 12   here tonight, the ones that you proposed.  The

 13   amendments under consideration here would waive

 14   the school and traffic standards for projects that

 15   will have a major impact in terms of overcrowding

 16   roads and schools.  And these are roads and

 17   schools that are already at or above capacity.

 18   Even if the particular standards in the APFS

 19   remain unchanged; for example, we leave the school

 20   capacity at 110 percent, the APFO itself will no

 21   longer be binding.  It will be optional.  An

 22   approving authority would not have to follow the
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  1   standards, but could waive them.  This will create

  2   a climate of uncertainty and unpredictability for

  3   both the developers and for the citizens.

  4             Until now, everyone knew what the rules

  5   were, and the rules were the rules.  Once the

  6   rules become optional, developers will be fighting

  7   with one another and with the city over who gets

  8   waivers and who doesn't.  Neighborhoods will be in

  9   a state of constant hyper vigilance, not knowing

 10   when and if the next project will be held to the

 11   rules, or if the rules will be suspended.  We'll

 12   have to start putting valium in the water so

 13   people can sleep at night.  Every planning

 14   commission meeting will now be a showdown between

 15   neighborhoods and developers over whether the

 16   rules will or won't apply.  This will end badly,

 17   and with more rather than less, conflict and

 18   divisiveness.

 19             Is this really the legacy that you would

 20   like to leave the city?  Thank you.  (Applause)

 21             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  I would assume now

 22   that everyone who had an interest in speaking has
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  1   done so.  And if that's acceptable, we will close

  2   this public hearing, and we'll keep the record

  3   open.  While this is not a legislative public

  4   hearing, I think we do need to keep the books open

  5   for anyone else who wants to comment and send in

  6   commentary.  What's an appropriate time?  Do you

  7   have a date in mind?

  8             SPEAKER:  Ninety days.  (Laughter)

  9             SPEAKER:  Could we suggest two weeks?

 10             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  All right, so are we

 11   talking as (inaudible) suggest here, the 14th of

 12   October?  All right, by 5 o'clock the 14th of

 13   October, if you have anything more to say, put it

 14   in writing and get it to the mayor and council.

 15             Now, I think we need a few minutes

 16   break, if you don't mind.

 17             SPEAKER:  Could we just finish?  How

 18   many more agenda items are there?

 19             MR. MOORE:  You're next.

 20             MAYOR MARCUCCIO:  You're next.  When you

 21   return there will be a public hearing on the Gray

 22   Falls issue.  All right?  That is next.  We have a
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  1   long list of folks.

  2             SPEAKER:  How long is the break?

  3                  (Whereupon, at 10:32 p.m., the

  4                  HEARING was adjourned.)

  5                     *  *  *  *  *
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